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MINUTES
CITY OF OLATHE
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
STAFF REPORT

CASE # SU-10-001

Sean Pendley, Senior Pendley, made the following staff presentation:

Case Sean Pendley Planning Commission February 22, 2010
Planner: Meeting Date:

Request: Special use permit renewal for Olathe solid waste transfer station.
Location: 1681 S. Valley Road

Owner/

Applicant: City of Olathe, Kent Seyfried

Acres: 10.0+ Proposed Use: Transfer Station
Current Zoning: M-3

Streets and Right of way: Valley Road
Existing/Required:

60’ (total ) _
Land Use Zoning Comp. Plan Designation
Site Industrial M-3/SUP Non-Residential
North Industrial MP-3 Non-Residential
East Industrial M-3 Non-Residential
South Industrial M-3 Non-Residential
West Industrial M-3/SUP Non-Residential

Platted: Lot 21, and part of Lot 17, Lone EIm Industrial Park, 2nd p|at.

. COMMENTS
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This is a request for renewal of a special use permit for the operation of a solid
waste transfer station. The subject site is located at 1681 South Valley Road

(one-quarter mile north of 151t Street and one-quarter mile west of Lone Elm
Road, within the Lone Elm Industrial Park).

The original special use permit (SU-14-94) for the transfer station was
approved in 1994. Two renewals have been approved with five (5) year time
limits in 2000 and 2005. Olathe Municipal Services is requesting another five
(5) year renewal for the special use permit to coincide with the service
agreement with Hamm Quarries, Inc., which expires in October, 2015. Kent
Seyfried, Solid Waste Manager, Olathe Municipal Services Department, has
submitted a letter explaining the transfer station operations and service
agreement (see attached).

The requested special use permit renewal does not involve any additional
changes to the original site development plan or existing daily operations. The
City expects to have a new service agreement for the transfer and disposal of
solid waste from this facility before 2015. Any modifications to this facility and
operations will be made with the next special use permit renewal application.

The transfer station operates under a Solid Waste Transfer Station Permit
issued by the Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE) and the
facility complies with all rules and regulations established by the State of
Kansas. The facility has also been maintained according to all stipulations
from the original special use permit and subsequent renewals.

The applicant has notified the surrounding property owners via certified mail
and posted a sign on the property per Unified Development Ordinance
(UDO) requirements.

ANALYSIS
A. Existing Conditions/Site Characteristics:

The existing site is operated by the City of Olathe as a solid waste transfer
station with an on-site scale house facility. The operation occurs within a
fully enclosed building with each vehicle weighed at the scale house prior to
entering the transfer facility building. Solid waste is delivered to the Hamm
Sanitary Landfill near Perry, Kansas. The facility operates from 7:00 a.m. —
4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and 7:00 a.m. to noon on Saturday. The
facility implements a daily standard operating procedure to keep the
surrounding roads clean.

B. Zoning, Uses and Character of the Surrounding Area:
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The subject property is currently developed as a solid waste transfer station
and is zoned M-3 (General Industrial District). Surrounding development
consists of additional heavy industrial uses to the north (concrete plant) and
west (quarry/demolition landfill), and other general industrial uses
(office/warehouse) to the south and east.

Access/Streets:

Transfer station traffic utilizes 149th Street and 1515t Street for access to
and from the industrial park. Direct access to the site is provided from two
separate drives on Valley Road.

Utilities/Municipal Services:

The property is located in the City of Olathe water and sewer service area.
Utilities are available to the site.

Conformance with Existing Plans and Policies:

The subject property and adjacent area are designated on the
Comprehensive Plan as nonresidential uses. Transfer stations are an
appropriate use for this area and the existing facility is compliance with
UDO requirements.

Time Limit:

Olathe Municipal Services is requesting a five (5) year renewal for the
special use permit to coincide with the service agreement with Hamm
Quarries, Inc., which expires in October, 2015. Typically the expiration date
is determined from the date of Governing Body approval. However, staff
recommends a slightly longer expiration for this renewal to October 1, 2015
to follow the current service agreement between the City and Hamm
Quarries.

The City expects to have a new service agreement for the transfer and
disposal of solid waste from this facility before 2015. Municipal Services
will begin the process for the next renewal of the special use permit once a
new service agreement has been approved.

I1. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS

A. Staff recommends approval of SU-10-001 for the following reasons:

(1) The proposed use is in conformance with the nonresidential
designation of the Comprehensive Plan.
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(2)  The transfer station is in compliance with the applicable
regulatory agencies monitoring the operations of the facility.

B. Staff recommends approval of SU-10-001 with the following stipulations:

(2) The special use permit for the transfer station shall expire on
October 1, 2015 to follow the current service agreement with
Hamm Quarries, Inc.

(2)  The perimeter landscaping shall continue to be maintained in
accordance with Unified Development Ordinance (UDO)
requirements.

Following staff presentation, Chair Marsh opened the meeting up for questions
from commissioners.

Comm. Campbell: Since this is a government facility, with a lot of our government
facilities, we have done no expiration dates. Do we need the expiration date because of
the agreement? Is there a reason why we have an expiration date on this one?

Mr. Pendley: Good question. We do not have any specific timelines in the Unified
Development Ordinance right now for this type of special use permit. It's been just the
typical length of time for a permit such as this for a transfer station. | guess it kind of
coincided with similar uses, like with quarries initially, and renewals of those types of
uses. But primarily for this renewal now, it really is a five year renewal, pretty much
because that’s when the service agreement will expire. That’s the reason, at this point.
Otherwise, staff would probably recommend a ten year renewal. It’s one of those uses
that’s probably due for some type of renewal just to look at the operation. | think we
could potentially look at changes to the site with that new service agreement. There
could be changes of facility, etc. So, that makes sense in this case, but otherwise, yes,
we could have probably recommended a longer renewal.

Chairman Marsh: Any other commissioner questions? Seeing or hearing none, this is a
public hearing. Is there anyone else here who would like to speak in favor of this item?
Seeing or hearing none, is there anyone who would like to speak in opposition to this
item? Seeing or hearing none, we’ll come back to the Planning Commission. Any further
guestions before we close the public hearing? If not, do | have a motion to close the
public hearing?

Motion by Commissioner Campbell, seconded by Commissioner Ingram, to close
the public hearing.

Motion passes 8-0.
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Motion by Commissioner Campbell, seconded by Commissioner Fry, to
approve SU-10-001, subject to the following stipulations:

(1)  The special use permit for the transfer station shall expire on
October 1, 2015 to follow the current service agreement with
Hamm Quarries, Inc.

(2)  The perimeter landscaping shall continue to be maintained in
accordance with Unified Development Ordinance (UDO)
requirements.

Motion passes 8-0.



RESOLUTION NO. 10-1023

A RESOLUTION GRANTING AN EXTENSION OF A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A
SOLID WASTE TRANSFER STATION, SUBJECT, HOWEVER, TO THE
SPECIAL CONDITIONS HEREINAFTER MORE FULLY EXPRESSED.

WHEREAS, Application No. SU-10-001 was filed with the City of Olathe,
Kansas, on the 8th day of January 2010; and

WHEREAS, said Application requested that the Governing Body of the City
of Olathe, Kansas, issue an extension to an existing special use permit for a Solid Waste
Transfer Station on the following described property:

All of Lot 21 and West 165.7 Feet of Lot 17, Lone Elm Industrial Park 2nd
Plat, a subdivision of the City of Olathe, Johnson County, Kansas.

WHEREAS, such property is zoned M-3 General Industrial District; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 18.54 of the Olathe Municipal Code authorizes the
establishment of such a use in such zoned area upon the issuance of a special use permit;
and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission and the City Council of the City of
Olathe, Kansas, having given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and after
holding a public hearing on the 22nd day of February 2010, and affording a full and fair
hearing to all the property owners, generally, and to other interested persons situated in the
affected area or in the vicinity thereof; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Olathe, Kansas, has
recommended that the special use extension be granted; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body is of the opinion that the extension of the
special use permit should be granted subject to the conditions set out herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY
OF THE CITY OF OLATHE, KANSAS:

SECTION ONE: That Application No. SU-10-001 requesting the
extension of an existing special use permit allowing a solid waste transfer station on the
previously described property, which is presently zoned as M-3, is hereby approved.

SECTION TWO: That this special use permit is approved and granted
upon the following express conditions and in conformance with Chapter 18.54 of the Olathe
Municipal Code:

1. The special use permit for the transfer station shall expire on October 1,
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2015 to follow the current service agreement with Hamm Quatrries, Inc.

2. The perimeter landscaping shall continue to be maintained in accordance
with Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) requirements.

SECTION THREE: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately.

ADOPTED by the Council this 23rd day of March 2010.

SIGNED by the Mayor this 23rd day of March 2010.

ATTEST:
Mayor

City Clerk
(Seal)

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney



January 6, 2010

City of Olathe Planning Division
Development Services Department
P.O. Box 768

Olathe, KS 66051-0768

Re: Special Use Permit Renewal for Olathe Solid Waste Transfer Station

Enclosed are the application forms for renewal of the Special Use Permit for the Olathe Solid
Waste Transfer Station located at 1681 S. Valley Rd. This facility is owned by the City of
Olathe and this application is for the third renewal of its Special Use Permit first issued in 1995.
The transfer station operates under a Solid Waste Transfer Station Permit #706 issued by the
Kansas Department of Health & Environment. This facility complies with all rules and
regulations established by KSA 65-3407 and KAR 28-29-23a. This facility has complied with
all Planning Division recommendations and stipulations of the original special use permit and the
2000 and 2005 renewals. A

The transfer station opened for operations in October 1995. Over 90,000 tons of municipal solid
waste was processed through this facility in 2009. The City of Olathe Municipal Services
Department is responsible for the gatehouse and grounds maintenance operations and HAMM
Quarries, Inc. under a Service Agreement with the City transfers the solid waste for disposal to
their landfill near Perry, KS. This current service agreement with HAMM expires in October
2015. Therefore, this permit renewal application is requested for five (5) years, to end in
October 2015 also. The City expects to have a new Service Agreement for the transfer and
disposal of solid waste from this facility before 2015, so any changes or modifications to the
facility and its operations will be made with the next special use permit renewal application.

Thank you for your consideration, and if you have any questions or need additional information
for this Special Use Permit renewal application, please contact me.

0 i, fﬂ

C. Kent Seyfrie
Solid Waste Manager
Olathe Municipal Services Department
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Ce. Merv Gleason, OMS Deputy Director
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COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
PL-B
Department: Development Services Council Meeting Date: March 23, 2010

Staff Contact: Sean Pendley, Dave Clements

Subject: Consideration of Ordinance No. 10-17, RZ-10-001, requesting approval of an amendment to a
BP/MP-2 zoning district for 119th Street Technology Park Sign Package Owner/Applicant: Steve Turley;
Rees, Masilionis, Turley Architects.

Key Result Area: Economic Sustainability

Executive Summary: This is a request for approval of an amendment to a BP/MP-2 zoning district for
119th Street Technology Park Sign Package, located in the northwest corner of 119th Street and Renner
Boulevard. The applicant is requesting to amend the zoning ordinance for the property to allow for
additional signage (sign package), which will include identification signs, wall signs, monument signs
(red number signs), and directional signs. The purpose of the signs is to allow visitors to more easily
locate businesses within the development. The following signs requested with the sign package would
be exceptions to the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO):

a. A complex sign located at 119th Street and Renner Boulevard (faces two arterials).
b. An additional monument sign for Lot 3 and Lot 5.

A public hearing was held before the Planning Commission on February 22, 2010. Steve Turley, Rees,
Masilionis, Turley Architects, spoke on behalf of the applicant. He discussed the number of signs and the
necessity of additional signage for the business park to be successful. The Planning Commission raised

concerns regarding the aesthetic appearance of monument signs located adjacent to 119th Street and

the length of time the existing signs have been in violation. The Planning Commission also questioned
the setbacks from the street right-of-way and the number of signs that are reasonably necessary for the
business park area. The existing signs that do not meet the required setbacks will be relocated to meet

all required setbacks.

No one spoke in opposition to the proposed rezoning amendment/sign package and staff has received
no protest petitions for this rezoning.

Following extensive discussion, the Planning Commission recommended approval of RZ-10-001 by a
vote of 8-0 with stipulations shown on page 21 of the Planning Commission minutes.

Fiscal Impact: None.
Recommendations/Options/Action Requested:

1. Approve Ordinance No. 10-17 to amend the zoning ordinance for 119th Street Technology Park
as stipulated by the Planning Commission.

2. Deny (5 positive votes required) Ordinance No. 10-17 to amend the zoning ordinance for 119th
Street Technology Park for reasons outlined by the Governing Body.
3. Return the zoning ordinance amendment for 119t Street Technology Park to the Planning

Commission in order for the Commission to address City Council directives.
Attachments: 1. Maps. 2. PC minutes. 3. Ordinance No. 10-17
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MINUTES
CITY OF OLATHE
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
STAFF REPORT

Case # RZ-10-001
Tanner Fortney, Planner, made the following staff presentation:

SUMMARY INFORMATION

Case Planner: Tanner Fortney Planning Commission February 22, 2010
Meeting Date:

Request: Approval of an amendment to a BP/MP-2 zoning district for 119th Street
Technology Park Sign Package.

Location: Northwest corner of 119th Street and Renner Boulevard.
Owner: Steven Karbank; Karbank Enterprises, LLC
Architect: Steve Turley; Rees, Masilionis, Turley Architects
Acres: 49+ Proposed Use: Office/Business Park
Number of Lots: 6
Current Zoning: BP/MP-2 Proposed Zoning: BP/MP-2
Streets and Right of way: 1190 Street Renner Boulevard

Existing

60’ (2 Street) 60’ (Y~ Street)
Required 60’ (Y2 Street) 60’ (¥ Street)
Proposed 60’ (Y2 Street) 60’ (¥ Street)
Land Use Zoning Comprehensive Plan
Designation
Site
Office/Warehouse BP/MP-2 Non-Residential
North
Outside Corporate N/A N/A
City Limits

East Office/Warehouse M-2 Non-Residential
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South Vacant C-2, M-2 Non-Residential
Office/Warehouse
West Single-Family Homes RP-3 Non-Residential

STAFF COMMENTS

This is a request for approval of an amendment to a BP/MP-2 zoning district for 119
th sStreet Technology Park Sign Package, located in the northwest corner of 119th
Street and Renner Boulevard. The applicant is requesting to amend the zoning
ordinance for the property to allow for additional signage (sign package), which will
include identification signs, wall signs, monument signs, and directional signs. The
applicant has submitted a sign location plan (Sheet G.A0.0) which identifies the
location of current and proposed signage as well as the various types of signs that
are requested. Lots 2, 5, and 6 are currently zoned BP (Business Park) and Lots 1,
3, and 4 are zoned MP-2 (General Industrial). No changes are proposed to the
underlying zoning classification.

Per the requirements of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), the applicant
notified all property owners within two hundred (200) feet of this property via
certified mail. The applicant has provided staff with certified mail receipts and staff
has verified all property owners have been properly notified. Because the
surrounding property and neighborhood is predominantly non-residential, staff
waived the neighborhood meeting requirement per Resolution 02-1058.

HISTORY

The property is currently occupied and used for office and light industrial purposes.
In 2009, zoning enforcement staff observed that monument signs were installed

adjacent to 119th Street and Renner Boulevard; the signs were in the shape of
numbers. Staff met with the applicant and informed him these signs do not conform
to the monument sign requirements of the UDO and would need to be removed or
brought into compliance. The applicant indicated he would like to keep the signs as
they are used to assist customers in finding the correct buildings in the business
park. In addition, the applicant stated they would like to keep the existing wall
signage, directional signs, and other signage within the park. The requested
deviations from the sign ordinance require a sign package and amendment to the
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zoning ordinance for this property and require Planning Commission and Governing
Body approval. No other changes to the preliminary site development plan are
proposes.

II. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

A. Utilities:

This property is located within the City of Olathe water and Johnson County
sanitary sewer service areas. The proposed location of the signs have been
reviewed and approved by the Municipal Services Department, subject to the
stipulation that no signs shall be located within any public easements.

. Identification (Complex) Signs:

The UDO allows groups of freestanding buildings that are interrelated, otherwise
known as a complex, to have one (1) identification sign identifying the complex
area. For developments with more than one (1) street frontage or more than one
thousand (1,000) feet of street frontage, an additional complex sign shall be

permitted. One complex sign is located at 119th Street and Barney Boulevard
and the applicant will be modifying this sign as shown on Sheet G.A3.0. The

applicant is requesting an additional identification sign at the corner of 119th
Street and Renner Boulevard as shown on Sheet G.A2.0 and G.A2.1. Because
this development is adjacent to two (2) arterial streets, the second sign is
permitted under the existing UDO but should be located entirely on Renner
Boulevard. Because the sign is located on a corner and wraps so that it is
partially located on both street frontages, the sign is not permitted under the
current UDO and the proposed sign must be approved as part of the sign
package.

Staff has reviewed the identification signs and recommends approval of the
signs based on the architectural drawings and the Sign Location Plan.

Wall Signs:

Wall signs are permitted in BP and MP-2 districts, but are restricted in BP
districts to two (2) wall signs per business or establishment, limited to one (1)
per wall, and the signs cannot exceed ten (10) percent of the wall area upon
which it is placed. For MP-2 districts, three (3) wall signs are permitted per
establishment, limited to one (1) per wall, and cannot exceed ten (10) percent of
the wall area upon which it is placed or two hundred (200) square feet,
whichever is less.

All existing and proposed walls signs on the Sign Location Plan are in
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accordance with the requirements of the current sign ordinance and no
exceptions have been requested by the applicant.

Monument Signs:

Monument signs are permitted in BP and MP-2 districts, in lieu of one (1)
permitted wall sign, and shall be restricted to freestanding buildings housing one
(1) tenant. The sign face and base shall not exceed six (6) feet in overall height
above the natural or average grade. The actual sign face shall not exceed
twenty-five (25) square feet in area per face if set back the minimum of ten (10)
feet from a property line. For each additional five (5) feet of setback, the overall
sign height may be increased two (2) feet and the sign face may be increased
ten (10) square feet to a maximum of fifteen (15) feet in overall sign height and
sixty-five (65) square feet per sign face.

All lots shown on the Sign Location Plan have monuments signs or are
requesting monument signs to identify the individual buildings and/or tenants.
Architectural drawings are provided on Sheets G.A4.0 and G.A4.1. Many of
these signs have already been installed by the applicant without the approval of
the Development Services Department and do not conform to the requirements
of the UDO and must be modified. The signs must be located outside of all sight
distance triangles, city right-of-way, utility easements, and must meet the
setback and dimensional restrictions. Staff has reviewed the drawings
submitted by the applicant and they are in substantial compliance with the UDO
requirements. The number of monument signs does not comply with the sign
ordinance requirements and the applicant is requesting an exception to the
number of signs as part of the sign package.

The existing and requested monument signs are as follows:

e Lot 1 will have one (1) monument sign. No additional monument signs
have been requested.

e Lot 2 will have one (1) monument sign. No additional monument signs
have been requested.

e Lot 3 will have two (2) monument signs. The UDO allows for one (1)
monument sign and the second sign must be approved by the Planning
Commission if it is to remain.

e Lot 4 will have one (1) monument sign. No additional monument signs
have been requested.

e Lot 5 will have two (2) monument signs. The additional sign must be



RZ-10-001 Continued
February 22, 2010

Page 4

approved by the Planning Commission if it is to remain.

e Lot 6 includes the proposed identification sign and will have two (2)
additional monument signs. One (1) of the monument signs is permitted
and the identification sign is permitted, but the second monument must
be approved by the Planning Commission if it is to remain.

Staff has reviewed the identification signs and recommends approval of the
signs based on the architectural drawings and the Sign Location Plan.

Directional (Wayfinding) Signs:

Directional signs are permitted in all zoning districts under the current UDO.
These signs serve solely to designate an area or activity such as “exit,”
“one-way,” “auto service,” etc. There is not limit on the number of directional
signs that may be located on any one (1) property, provided the signs do not
exceed four (4) square feet per face, two (2) faces permitted, and do not exceed
four (4) feet in height when freestanding. Architectural drawings are provided on
Sheet G.A5.0.

The applicant has added one (1) directional sign to Lots 1, 3, 4, and 5 in
addition to the proposed monument signs. Although there is no limitation to the
number of directional signs, staff feels these signs should be considered when
determining the number of monument signs the Planning Commission wishes to
allow as these signs will be permanent in nature and serve a similar role as the
monument signs. Staff has discussed these issues with the applicant and would
support the monument signs and directional signs as shown on the Sign
Location Plan, providing no more than one (1) directional sign is located on any
one (1) lot and the signs are not located adjacent to a proposed monument sign.

Staff has reviewed the directional signs with respect to the location and the
number of monument signs proposed and recommends approval of the signs
based on the architectural drawings and the Sign Location Plan.

IV.  ANALYSIS

Staff's analysis of this application is based in part on the criteria established in
Golden v. Overland Park, which determined factors a Planning Commission and
City Council should consider in making decisions on rezoning and special use
applications. The following are the criteria for considering applications as listed in
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 18.12.140 and staff findings for
each item:

A. The conformance of the proposed use to the Comprehensive Plan and
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other adopted planning policies.

The future land use map for the Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject
property as being prescribed for non-residential use. The property is currently
zoned BP and MP-2 and the proposed amendment to the zoning ordinance
would be consistent with this land use designation.

. The character of the neighborhood including but not limited to: land use,

zoning, density (residential), architectural style, building materials, height,
structural mass, siting, open space and floor-to-area ratio (commercial
and industrial).

The area surrounding this site is predominantly office and light industrial. The
property to the north is within the City of Lenexa and also consists of office and
light industrial uses. The properties to the south are zoned C-2 (General
Business) and M-2 (General Industrial). The C-2 property is vacant and the
industrial property is used as office/warehouse. The property to the east is
zoned M-2 and is also office/lwarehouse. The property to the west is zoned
RP-3 (Low Density Multifamily) and contains single-family homes as part of the
Aberdeen Village development. The proposed sign amendments will not have a
significant impact on the character of the surrounding neighborhood.

The zoning and uses of nearby properties, and the extent to which the
proposed use would be in harmony with such zoning and uses.

The use of the property will not change as a result of the sign package. The
zoning ordinance for the property will change but the uses will remain
unchanged.

The suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted
under the applicable zoning district regulations.

The property is restricted to industrial uses and business park uses under the
BP and MP-2 zoning classification. No change is in use is proposed at this time
and a use change will require staff review.

. The length of time the property has remained vacant as zoned.

The property is currently occupied. No additional buildings or principle
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structures are requested at this time.

The extent to which approval of the application would detrimentally affect
nearby properties.

The proposed development will not have a significant impact on noise,
aesthetics, traffic, lighting, and other characteristics of the surrounding area.

. The extent to which the proposed use would substantially harm the

values of nearby properties.

Approval of the zoning ordinance amendment and amended preliminary
development plan should not have a negative effect on surrounding property
values. No evidence to the contrary has been provided to staff.

. The extent to which the proposed use would adversely affect the capacity

or safety of that portion of the road network influenced by the use, or
present parking problems in the vicinity of the property.

The City’s Traffic Engineering Division has reviewed the preliminary
development plan and has not identified any additional improvement needed as
part of the proposed plan based on the location or number of signs. No signs
shall be located within the street right-of-way or within sight distance triangles.

|. The extent to which the proposed use would create air pollution, water

pollution, noise pollution or other environmental harm.

Staff is not aware of any potential for unlawful levels of air, water or noise
pollution with the proposed development.

. The economic impact of the proposed use on the community.

Staff has not identified any factors that will have a negative economic impact.

. The gain, if any, to the public health, safety, and welfare due to denial of

the application as compared to the hardship imposed upon the
landowner, if any, as a result of denial of the application.

Staff is not aware of any potential threat to the public health, safety and welfare
as a result of this rezoning as the signs will be not be located within the street
right-of-way, sight distance triangles, or public easements.
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L. The recommendation of professional staff.

Staff recommends approval of the amendment to the zoning ordinance and
preliminary site development plan as stipulated by staff.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of RZ-10-001 for the following reasons:

a.

The rezoning and preliminary development plans, as stipulated, are not in
conflict with the Golden v. Overland Park criteria.

The rezoning and preliminary development plans, as stipulated, conform to
the Comprehensive Plan.

Staff recommends approval of RZ-10-001 subject to the following stipulations:

a.

Prior to publishing the zoning ordinance and within thirty (30) days following
approval by the Governing Body, a statement that a preliminary development
plan has been approved for the subject property shall be filed in accordance
with the requirements of Section 18.12.230 of the Unified Development
Ordinance (UDO).

Prior to the construction of any new signs or the alteration of any existing sign
where a sign permit has been issued, a new sign permit shall be obtained
from the Development Services Department.

All existing signs for which a sign permit has not been granted shall obtain
such permit within thirty (30) days following approval of this ordinance by the
Governing Body.

All signage shall be restricted to, and in conformance with, the Sign Package
Proposal stamp dated February 8, 2010. Any additional signage shall
require an amendment to the zoning ordinance for this property, subject to
approval by the Planning Commission and Governing Body.

Following staff presentation, Chair Marsh opened the meeting up for questions from
commissioners.

Comm. Rinke: The sign at Renner and 119th — The letters are obviously permanent, but then it’s
got a bamboo hedge as a backdrop. I’'m not familiar with the look of bamboo hedge. Can you tell
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me if there’s other areas in Olathe where a developer has used that type of product?

Mr. Fortney: | can’t think of anywhere we’ve had a particular sign using that type of material. |
don’t know that we’ve ever had that particular request before.

Comm. Rinke: Do you know how fast it grows, or what it looks like in this type of weather?

Mr. Fortney: That probably would be a question that would best be answered by the applicant. |
do know that currently along the medians, along Barney Boulevard, the applicant had planted
bamboo in those medians that is existing, and | know that about six months ago when this sign
issue first became an issue, our traffic engineering division did have some concerns about that,
and because the height of the bamboo was creating a sight distance and visibility issue, they
asked that that bamboo be trimmed. The applicant did trim it, and | believe they now have a
regular trimming schedule that they coordinate with our traffic division, to make sure that that’s
not a problem. So, it does grow fairly quick, and they will have to make sure that if it did
become any kind of a traffic hazard, that it would be trimmed. In this case, | don’t really see that
being a problem as it would be out of the sight distance triangle.

Comm. Fry: From a procedural perspective, when an applicant comes and they’re designing a
development like this, and they have their signage in mind, do they go through a specific
approval process for the signs that they hope to have, in the beginning of this project, back
years ago? And if that was the case — These new signs that we’re now trying to approve today
that they did put in, did those ever get approval?

Mr. Fortney: ldeally what would happen is, when someone comes in to rezone property for a
new development, at that particular time, that would be the most appropriate time to review
any exceptions one would request to the sign package itself, because it would need to be a
modification to the zoning ordinance. There are certain developments we’ve had that have done
that. However, what has become more common is, an applicant comes in and they request to
zone property for a particular zoning, and then they complete their development. Then, several
years later, they realize, because of certain variables on the site, they feel that they need
additional signage, and then they have to come back and amend it at that time. So, ideally, we
would like them to come in in the beginning and we can address this with the rest of the site
plan that came in, but when it happens several years down the road, this is how we’ve had to
process them procedurally.

Comm. Fry: Has it happened in the past where an applicant, after a development has already
been established, then an applicant comes back to request approval for a sign that has already

been put in?

Mr. Fortney: We have had that happen before, yes.
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Chairman Marsh: It’s kind of the exception, not the rule. | don’t recall this —

Mr. Fortney: Signs being installed prior to them being approved is an exception, yes.

Chairman Marsh: Right. If | might extend that thought, | guess it’s important for us — and not to
nit-pick on it — is to understand why that might have happened. | would have assumed that
through the planning process, when they were in here originally and then back again for the
more recent three-story facility, etc., that we have spoken to them at least as to process, as to
what needed to happen with the signage. So, it begs the question — Was it something
deliberate that we caught after the fact?

Mr. Fortney: At the time that this property was rezoned and developed, there really was not a
whole lot of discussion related to signage in terms of deviations. At the time when people come

in and have pre-application meetings with staff before they submit their applications, we inform

them that any signage they’re going to put in has to meet our Unified Development Ordinance.
Of course, we show them those requirements. In this particular case, again, as the development

has kind of grown and they’ve added additional buildings, then of course we’ve worked with
them to make those changes. But generally speaking, we always inform them up front that they
have to meet those sign requirements, and unless they request an exception, it's not an

automatic.

Chairman Marsh: So you feel comfortable that we as a city, as a planning staff, had
communicated like we have communicated with other development processes, what the
process is?

Mr. Fortney: Yes, | would.

Chairman Marsh: | assume that’s where Commissioner Fry was going with this. Thank you. Any
other commissioner questions?

Comm. Harrelson: Could you please again summarize for me — | thought | heard you say that
there are two changes tonight that we need to consider. | thought you said one of those was the
duplication of monument sides. You considered the big numerals as a second monument sign,
and that would require a change to the ordinance. Is that one of the changes?

Mr. Fortney: Yes. On the two sites — this one being first — you can see that they have two
monument signs in front of that building. They’re only allowed one by code because that’s all
one lot. They’re requesting two. The second was for this lot. They’re requesting a monument
sign here, and a monument sign here. And of course, they’ve got their identification sign on the
corner. So, those are the two signs where they have more monument signage than is permitted.

Comm. Harrelson: So each individual lot is allowed to have its own monument sign, in addition
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to the monument sign for the development. But they have exceeded that by one because of the
second one along 119th. Is that correct?

Mr. Fortney: Yes. They can have two identification signs for the development because they have
two street frontages. But in this case, they have one sign that is kind of the V or L-shaped sign
where it’s going to be located on two separate street frontages, so they need approval to have
that. And then, of course, they need approval for those two lots for the monument signs you just
mentioned.

Chairman Marsh: A question relative to the big numbers that are out there. You said that in
terms of their size, their dimension, those are within the UDO or within the signage allowed - ?

Mr. Fortney: What the applicant is proposing would be permitted. The ones that were installed, |
believe, had some issues when they were installed. They were located in site distance

triangles, possible utility easements, and I’'m not sure if their size completely conforms with the
code. But with the changes proposed with this sign package that the architect submitted, they
will conform.

Chairman Marsh: Observationally, they just look a bit big. Any other commissioner questions?

Comm. Rezek: In the location where they’re putting the two signs in front of the one lot, is it
true that that one lot houses two separate businesses?

Mr. Fortney: Yes.

Chairman Marsh: Thank you. We’ll have plenty of opportunity to ask more questions as we
proceed here. This is a public hearing, and the public hearing rules apply.

Chairman Marsh outlined the process and rules for the public hearing.

Steve Turley, Applicant’s Engineer, 908 Broadway, 6th Floor, Kansas City, Missouri, 64105,
appeared before the Planning Commission and made the following comments:

Mr. Turley: Good evening. I’'m a partner with Reese Masilionis Turley Architecture. We are the
architects of record, working with Karbank Real Estate Company on this proposal. Actually, staff
has given a very good presentation about our overall proposal, so | don’t know that there’s a
whole lot | can add to the fact. There are a couple questions that were asked that | would like to
clarify. | think one was the bamboo issue. There are 17 different varieties of bamboo growing
out in that development at this time. It does grow very fast, and Mr. Karbank and his grounds
crews have confirmed to everybody that we’ve been talking to so far at the City that he will
maintain and cut those things and make sure that they’re kept nice-looking and fresh. For him,
it’s as important as anybody else. He is very proud of this development, very happy with the
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way it’s succeeding, and wants to make sure he has a good presence at that intersection. He
appreciates everything the city of Olathe has done for him.

As far as the monument signs, there were some questions about how we got to where
we are. There were some signs put up on a temporary basis to try and help a large tenant in the
area who was looking for some additional signage. Those signs were put up by a contractor
working with the owner, to try and verify that the tenant would be happy with them. He then put
a few more up. We got caught at that point, and simply having put some signs up, we weren’t
ready to actually finalize, but they were up for evaluation and the City notified us that we
needed to go through a process to tear those down. We came back and said we were going to
tear them down, but we wanted to relocate to where we want them. We asked to go through
the process of asking for the signs to be properly done, on a proper basis. Staff was very
amenable to that and agreed to work with us on that. Steve Karbank has apologized to staff for
moving forward at a faster pace, but it was to try and accommodate a tenant who had some
people in on a national basis and wanted to look at some things, and he felt obligated to try and
do that. So, that’s kind of why we did it. It’s not right; but we simply did do that to accommodate
some things and are willing to go back and go through the process. If the signs are not
approved, obviously they will be taken down, but our hope is that by going through this process,
we can get you all to help us and approve them so we can properly install them.

| don’t know if you have any other questions specific to that, but | think the presentation
covered what we’re looking for. It’s fairly simple. | think the big piece is just to get everybody to
understand what the scope is so we can proceed.

Chairman Marsh: Thank you. Commissioner questions?

Comm. Harrelson: | like this development, always have, and | think the fact that Mr. Karbank
continues to take care of it | think is excellent. When | go out there and drive around, | see

these big red numbers, and it reminds me of being at Children’s Mercy Hospital or something,
where they have these very basic, colored, big, huge numbers. Things where you could not
possibly get lost. And when | looked in that development, there’s signage all over the building.

So, as | think about someone coming to that development, | think, how could anyone ever get
lost in here? | mean, there’s a pretty limited amount of roads to drive on, the buildings are
heavily identified. So, I’'m kind of wondering, just out of curiosity — | think most developers
would tend to do less in signage rather than more, and this thing seems to be very...I just don’t
like the big, red numbers. Sorry.

Mr. Turley: This was driven by a request from a tenant. They have multiple buildings there with
multiple operations and were looking for a way to simplify some direction through the area.
There are signs on the buildings that do say the tenants, but they don’t necessarily say the

specific phase or part or what that business is. So, there was a request to do something, and to

be honest with you, we were working with Steve to try and create a little more of a — | won’t say
art, but to some degree, something that was a little bit different, that would make it easy to
find, and potentially some people might not like it, but other people would think it’s very nice.
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So, | appreciate your position. We feel it does add a different slant to his development, but it
also addresses some of the issues that one of the larger tenants had on how to make sure that
people did get around the area, and were able to find it quickly and easily, and they have a lot
of traffic coming into that area on a regular basis, and they felt that this was something they
wanted to do. So, we kind of played on that and amped it a little bit. We looked at it as more
way-finding, but staff convinced us it needed to be called monument signs. So, we’re here to
get it to where everybody understands, yes, it was something that was driven, to a certain
degree, by a tenant’s requirements, and a large tenant at that, and how do we achieve that and
still create a little bit of interest. If | had made it any other color, it wouldn’t be as noticeable.

Comm. Locke: Just for clarification, | guess | should ask you the question that - | thought | heard
Tanner and you say something that conflicted. You said that if these signs are approved, they
will stay, and | thought | understood that if they were to approve this, they were to be a
different dimension and they may be relocated.

Mr. Turley: | apologize — Yes, basically, those would be taken down and the right ones would be
put back in the proper location, because almost all of them are mis-located. We are working

with them on the sizing of it to make sure they all fit within the guidelines.

Comm. Campbell: What’s the timing of that?

Mr. Turley: As soon as possible. Basically, if you all were to say yes tonight and we get city
council to approve it, he will start immediately to get them done. He’s hoping 60 days after we
get final approval, get all our permits approved, and move forward.

Comm. Campbell: What’s the status of the zoning enforcement issue? Is that letter out?

Mr. Fortney: The zoning enforcement has begun. That process is temporarily on hold as an —
What | would point out, as far as the timing, if you look under stipulation c in the report, |
indicated there that all existing signs for which a sign permit has not been granted — which
would be the numbers — they have to obtain the permit within 30 days following approval of the
ordinance by the city council.

Mr. Turley: And we’re willing to do that.

Mr. Fry: My interest is back to these signs and whether they’re temporary. You mentioned the
word “temporary.” How are they different today than they will be once they’re moved? What
makes it “temporary” now?

Mr. Turley: Good question. They’re poured-in-place concrete, or cast actually on a site, and then
put out on the site and located on cast footings. So, they were temporary in terms of they
weren’t the finished product. If you look at the drawings, it shows an illuminated box attached
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to each one of those numbers, and on that would also state the tenant and some information
about that. So, what you see out there are temporary in terms of, those are cardboard boxes
basically painted right now. They haven’t been finished. So, we simply put those out to show the
tenant and to get a feeling for the size and scale of it, to make sure everybody was okay with
what we were doing before we actually finished and put the final product in. As | said, the
contractor went on and put up more signs than we thought were going to be done, so we
figured we have to get this resolved with our tenant. They signed off on it, and about three days
later, we got the first letter from the City. That’s when | immediately contacted planning staff
and talked to them about getting this resolved.

Comm. Fry: In your opinion, where did the error take place? | mean, | don’t want to place fault
on someone, but we want to make sure —

Mr. Turley: The ownership was trying to accommodate the tenant as quickly as possible. They
had people coming into town. They felt like they could put a couple signs up. To be honest, Mr.
Karbank at first was not sure exactly what level of signs were being put in or how they were
being done. So, we just did it. | wish | could give you a great explanation, but the bottom line is,
simply, it was done to accommodate and expedite a certain demand on a client, and he is a very
responsive person. Sometimes he jumps to make the client happy, almost before he thinks
about what else needs to be done. So, that was done at this point in time. We recognize the
error. And we will take the signs down if this does not pass. There’s no problem with that. But
we would like to see if we can’t reach an agreement that there is an appropriateness to it and
basically go through the proper channels.

Comm. Locke: A question for Tanner. In the reading here, it says that this would have to be an
amendment to the UDO on signage - ?

Mr. Fortney: No, it would not be an amendment to the UDO; it would be an amendment to the
zoning ordinance for this particular property.

Comm. Locke: Okay, the zoning ordinance. For clarification, to amend this rezoning ordinance,
would that be specific to this, or would that then become a permanent amendment that could
be used with any project package that would come in?

Mr. Fortney: No, that would just be for this particular site.

Chairman Marsh: I'd like to go back to several commissioner comments about the red numbers.
Here’s what I’'m hearing, particularly with the aspects of Mr. Fry’s investigation into how this
happened, the process. You mentioned several times, the anxiousness of satisfying a client that
was coming in, which | fully understand. In some cases, that can go overboard, and | think
maybe those numbered signs are exactly that. Just from an advertising, marketing, directional,
or billboard — There’s several things that you do to gain somebody’s vision. One is the
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dimensions, the size. The other is motion. The other is color. And it seems like not only are they

too big, but they’re bright red. I’d hate to have that whole area be considered the “numbered
zone” rather than a technology park. It's too much. I’'m concerned about it because it doesn’t
make a lot of sense to make them red. Red is kind of a negative color anyway in terms of when

you’re in your car, you stop, etc. It tells the brain to do a certain thing. | don’t mean to nitpick it,
but they don’t look too good to me, and | would agree with a couple other commissioners who
have mentioned it. So, | would suggest maybe trying a different color. Or maybe the dimensions.

You can still do what you need to do, and | understand that. | just think it’s a bit much.

Mr. Turley: As far as color, we did go through a color study of about 25 different colors. We

went from painting it the same color as the concrete walls that are out there; we went to blue
because some of the trim on the buildings out there is blue; we went to yellow; we looked at
green. To be honest, all the colors out there were very difficult to fit, because green ties into

summer really nice with all the other landscape around it. Yellow was almost more caution than

the red. The red happens to be a tertiary color of the other colors that are in the development,
and that is the color that we came back and felt, probably of all the colors, worked the best for
what we’re doing. When you look at some of the others, we did paint a number of them and
looked at different colors, and you couldn’t see them. That’s part of the reason why we did go
with that color. | appreciate your position and what you’re asking, and if you’re saying you’d like
us to go back and do more color studies —

Chairman Marsh: Maybe it’s dimension. It’s kind of like you’re going to Worlds of Fun. It’s not as
professional. | think you can get to where you want to get and not be three times the size of
what a normal one might be. And | understand you have people coming in from outside the
country, and from all over the place, and there’s certainly a reason to call out each one of the
buildings. Even if the buildings have some signage on it. | understand that, too. We need it

simple. You need it simple because of the numbers of people and where they come from. It’s
not that | don’t have an understanding or feeling for that.

Comm. Campbell: To follow up, one of the issues I’'m having is that we have three of these signs
located along 119th Street, where we have done such a huge job of maintaining and trying to
upgrade the aesthetic look. The primary park signs are very nice and professional, but along our
main arterial, we’ve got three of these numbers glaring out at us. | have an issue with it as well.
Especially there. Internally, in the development, | can see that. But I’'m struggling with it.

Comm. Fry: On the timeline, when the tenant got anxious because somebody was coming in,
wanted to identify the location better, and the temporary signs went up. When was that,
approximately?

Mr. Turley: | really don’t know the exact dates. | do not have the timeline. | can look into it.

Comm. Fry: You said you were contacted three weeks after that - ?
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Mr. Turley: It seemed like it wasn’t very much after that when we got the first notification from
the City.

Comm. Fry: But you don’t know how long those numbers have been up there?

Mr. Turley: | cannot give you an answer. | don’t have the dates in front of me. If you’d like me to
look into it, I'd be happy to get back to you.

Chairman Marsh: Thank you for responding. Any other questions of the applicant at this point?
Okay. Thank you so much. This is a public hearing. Is there anyone else here who would like to

speak in favor of this item? Is there anyone present who would like to speak in opposition to
this item? Seeing or hearing no one, we will return to the Planning Commission for our collective
thoughts as to what we think about this, and ask our final questions while the public hearing is

still open.

Comm. Campbell: | have a follow-up for Tanner. On the monument sign and the definition, and
going back into the UDO, based on the size that we have here, what do we have as far as

square footage? We're allowed 25 square feet per sign face, but this entire thing is, based on

how it’s done, this whole thing is a sign. So, I'm struggling with how these conform directly in

our UDO.

Mr. Fortney: They do. The face is what is restricted, not the base. Based on the square footage
of the sign face area, it would be in conformance with the requirement. There’s also an
allowance that allows, when you set a monument sign back so many additional feet from the
right-of-way, it also allows you to increase that height limitation by an additional, | believe it’s
an additional five feet. So, depending on where they set these signs — and that is a discussion

we have had with the applicant, so if they push them back far enough, as they’ve indicated,
they would be okay. They would be conforming with code.

Comm. Campbell: Do you have a square footage calculation for each number?

Mr. Fortney: | believe that they were all about the same, roughly.

Someone speaking off microphone — Mr. Turley: Just under 25 feet. [inaudible] The numbers
were about five foot tall and not quite three foot wide. And the extension, that box, is 2 x 3 foot.
So it’s six foot plus the [inaudible], so we were at [inaudible].

Mr. Fortney: What they’ll have to do, Commissioner Campbell, if this package is approved, they
will have to come in and they will have to go through the sign permitting process still, just as

they would with any other sign. At that point, we will review each one to make sure that it
complies with what is approved. There won’t be just a blanket approval this evening, and they’ll
just install the signs without any further review.
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Comm. Campbell: On the monument sign, the way these are designed at this point, these are
monument signs, with two faces — is that correct?

Mr. Fortney: We would consider them two faces, yes.

Comm. Campbell: So the way our code reads, is it 25 feet per face, or 25 feet per sign.

Mr. Fortney: We would allow 25 feet per face because the double face would county.

Comm. Ingram: | have a question for Tanner, and then | want to make a comment about Jon’s
comments earlier. When you go back under “History” and it’s talking about the zoning
enforcement staff observing these signs, was there a complaint regarding the signs, or was that
just a casual drive by, someone noticed them, and brought it to their attention?

Mr. Fortney: Actually, it was both. We saw it first, and then, shortly after we documented it, we
did start receiving a complaint. | think we received two, actually.

Comm. Ingram: I'm pretty much in agreement with Commissioner Campbell, that we have
worked really hard with 119th Street. I’'m like you — That just doesn’t fit what we were hopeful
to have. And | think within the development, whatever they can do to assist people as they're
driving through, that’s appropriate. But just right on 119th Street, I'm not in favor of it either. |
wondered if there had been complaints. That was my main concern.

Chairman Marsh: What was the characterization of the complaints?

Mr. Fortney: Basically it was just the aesthetics of the numbers. It was basically just the
appearance. People saw the numbers, they appeared rather off from the character of the area,
and people had called and thought they were in violation. The City investigated that to see if
they had any kind of permit for it. That was the general comments that we received.

Chairman Marsh: Thank you. Commissioner Harrelson.

Comm. Harrelson: Did | hear Mr. Turley say that those numerals are concrete? They are
concrete. | assume those have to be maintained. Is there some schedule of painting those every
couple of years, or what-have-you? Okay. Tanner, one of the reasons | asked about the changes
to the ordinance, it sounds to me as if the monument signs themselves are in compliance with
the ordinance. The only issue that we really have is the number of monument signs. Is that
correct?

Mr. Fortney: Yes. I'm glad you mentioned that, because that is something | wanted to point out
before the Planning Commission proceeds to vote. If you were to deny this this evening, and
even if it were denied by city council, all the applicant would have to do in order to bring this in
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compliance with our code would be to remove the sign; they would have to remove one of the
two signs on this lot, and then they would have to remove one of the two signs on this lot. But
all the signs that you see along 119th and along Renner would not have to be removed,
providing that they obtain sign permits for them and they meet the dimensional requirements as
they were submitted in the code.

Comm. Harrelson: Maybe I'm misunderstanding, but | thought that Mr. Turley indicated that
there were a couple of those that had to be moved. Are the ones that are currently located
along 119th Street, do they have the appropriate setback for the size sign they are now?

Mr. Fortney: Not presently. | believe some of them were also located within easements, and
they were also located within sight distance triangles.

Comm. Harrelson: But the ones that we’re seeing there now, especially the big number 1 that’s
right along 119th, | assume that one would be set back — Is that correct?

Mr. Fortney: I’'m not sure exactly which one is the number 1, but yes, | think the architect
indicated it would be set back.

Chairman Marsh: Is there any way these big red numbers will be illuminated?

Mr. Fortney: No. If they wanted to illuminate those numbers, they would have to come back in
and request another amendment to the site plan.

Chairman Marsh: Any spot lights shining on the monument sign?

Mr. Fortney: They could have them indirectly illuminated. They could not be directly illuminated.
Comm. Ingram: Didn’t he say something about a light box on the signs earlier?

Mr. Fortney: They could be indirectly illuminated, yes. That’s correct. What I’'m saying is, they
will not be directly illuminated, or back lit.

Comm. Ingram: But isn’t that in place right now?
Mr. Turley: Right now there are no lights on those, but the proposed sign, those boxes would be
internally illuminated. Right now, our plan does show a recommendation for lighting the signs

as well.

Chairman Marsh: Lighting the numbers?

Mr. Turley: Ground lights, [inaudible] in the package right now.
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Comm. Ingram: But also internally illuminated?

Mr. Turley: No. Internal illumination will only be on that rectangular box with the names, but the
number itself would not be internally illuminated.

Chairman Marsh: Our public hearing is still open. Any other questions? We’ve dug a lot of soil

here tonight. Now we need to get some direction in our minds as to what we’d like to do with
this. Are we all comfortable at least with the fact — we may not like what our alternatives are

necessarily, but with what we’re actually looking at in terms of making the total sign package

come into compliance with the UDO, even though we may have differences of opinion about
whether we like that outcome. We all understand what it is.

Comm. Rezek: My position is, and I’'m glad Commissioner Campbell brought up the point of the
proximity to 119th Street, is, I’'m in support of this, but | would like to encourage the applicant to
move the numbers as far away as 119th Street as they could and still be functional. I'm not a
huge fan of big red numbers, but | understand what the tenant wants, and that’s their
prerogative. That’s what they want their business to look like.

Chairman Marsh: Just a point of clarification on that. Just in terms of the location of the
numbers on 119th, where they’re at today is going to be moved back some? And how much?

Mr. Fortney: That is correct. | believe it depends on which number you’re looking at, will depend
on how far back it is, with different numbers next to different site triangles and easements. So,
it will depend.

Chairman Marsh: Well, can you go through each one and give us a feel? | believe it’s that
important.

Comm. Campbell: Tanner, | have that here, and | can answer for you. The two monument signs
that are up close to 119th and Renner, which would be 3 and 4, are showing the site triangle as
25 feet, plus the signs would be set back another 12 feet. So, they would be set back 37 feet
from the actual right-of-way line.

Chairman Marsh: Where are they located now?

Comm. Campbell: From my understanding, they’re almost up on the right-of-way, not 37 feet
away.

Mr. Fortney: That is correct. They are virtually adjacent to the right-of-way.

Chairman Marsh: So, specifically each one of them will have about a 37 foot movement off of
119th?
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Comm. Campbell: Except for number 1. That will be moved back to 25 feet.

Mr. Fortney: Well, it will actually be a little further back than that because the edge of the
pavement is not where the right-of-way begins. The right-of-way is going to begin more back
about where the sidewalk is. So, it will probably be more like 45 to 50 feet from the back of
curb.

Comm. Campbell: That’s not what this site plan says.

Mr. Turley: | guess the question you’re asking, where are they sitting right now, they’re sitting
five to six feet back from the sidewalk right now. They’re going to have to be pushed back at
least four to six feet, depending on the location and where they are. There’s also the site
triangles we have to deal with that will probably push them back a little farther even from that
condition.

Chairman Marsh: Well, I'm often easily confused, and this is another case. So, we’re talking
about where these big, huge, red numbers are, that they’re going to move back from where they
sit today, not 37 feet, but six feet? Or four feet? Is that correct?

Mr. Turley: The numbers that we’re proposing will sit back probably six to ten feet further than
where they are presently.

Chairman Marsh: Okay.

Mr. Fortney: What you’re looking at is, there’s approximately 60 feet of half street right-of-way
on 119th Street. If you look on page G-A-4, there’s 60 feet of half street right-of-way; from the
back of the curb it’s about 25 feet, as Mr. Campbell had indicated. From that, they’ll sit back an
additional 12, so it would be 37 from the actual start of that curb, is what it would be. So, that is
correct — 37 feet. But it would only be 12 feet from the actual right-of-way.

Comm. Campbell: Are they in front of the sidewalks now? They're behind the sidewalks. Just
barely. Okay.

Chairman Marsh: Thank you. Any other thoughts here before we close the public hearing?

Comm. Fry: I’'m not opposed to the numbers, from my perspective. It just doesn’t bother me. My
issue is really with the precedent that we’re setting for future developers who just decide they
just want to put up extra signs, and then — oops — get caught. And then, because we did it this
time, we need approval next time. | like the development. | think what you all have done is a
great thing, and the numbers don’t bother me. I’'m just nervous about what’s going to happen
next time something like this comes about, about what precedent we’re setting for other
businesses. I'm a big sign fan, too. It’s just about following the UDO, | guess is the issue that |
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have. | don’t know if there’s a way that we can come to an agreement about where these should
be placed and not set a precedent for somebody else to do the same thing down the road. | just
don’t know.

Chairman Marsh: Any other comments before we close the public hearing? Motion to close the
public hearing?

Motion by Commissioner Harrelson, seconded by Commissioner Campbell, to
close the public hearing.

Motion passes 8-0.

Chairman Marsh: Comments, or a motion on RZ-10-001. Let me give my thoughts on it. One is,
having those big red numbers is really great for internal movement and all of that. We as
citizens drive by it all the time, and | can’t remember a time, at least in my experience on the
commission, which has been considerable, that there’s been anybody call in on a development.
Maybe if it’s not being kept up, but call in specifically and say, you know something? Those big
red numbers out there just don’t fit. Or whatever the words were. So, if there were people who
called in, statistically there’s a whole lot of people that drive by there and look at it and say,
That doesn’t make sense.

Internally, | don’t have a problem with big red numbers. That’s there’s. But when they’re
out on the street, they don’t mean anything, and it looks funny. And they’re going to be lit up at
night. I'm not liking that. | also do have a concern about, as Commissioner Fry brought up, about
the fact of “oops” and setting a precedent. In this case, staff has looked at it and thought about
it enough from the standpoint of what there is, that they seem to be okay with it. But | also do
carry that concern, too. That's not a motion; those are just my collective thoughts. | am
prepared for a motion.

Comm. Harrelson: I'd like to make one comment to that. | understand the objection to the
numbers. | don’t really like them. But | also know we have Farmers Insurance, who has decided
to locate in our town. They have expanded their operation significantly in Olathe, and they are a
significant tenant in this development. | know that because of those numbers, | think
operationally it works for them. I’'m not sure that they themselves, if they had the option, would
say, Wow, | really want to build developments and put big red numbers in them. | think because
they have a tenant who has many people coming to these buildings, and the confusion that it
causes when people come for the first time and don’t know what Farmers Insurance building to
go to, | would say that that’s probably the reason they have these numbers, is to kind of help
those folks who come to town. So, when we look at it in those terms — Does the tenant make a
difference? Well, | guess when you have someone that’s as big as these big folks are, that are
located here, | think we do take a look at it and say, you know, it is an operational for them. So
maybe we look at it and say, as long as it meets our ordinance, our UDO and our ordinances,
there’s some tweaks here, but the fact that we don’t like the numbers doesn’t seem to be an
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impetus for rejecting their proposal.

Motion by Commissioner Harrelson, seconded by Commissioner Campbell, to
recommend approval of RZ-10-001, for the following reasons:

a.

The rezoning and preliminary development plans, as stipulated, are not in
conflict with the Golden v. Overland Park criteria.

The rezoning and preliminary development plans, as stipulated, conform to
the Comprehensive Plan.

Commissioner Harrelson’s motion included recommending approval with the following

stipulations:

a.

Prior to publishing the zoning ordinance and within thirty (30) days following
approval by the Governing Body, a statement that a preliminary development
plan has been approved for the subject property shall be filed in accordance
with the requirements of Section 18.12.230 of the Unified Development
Ordinance (UDO).

Prior to the construction of any new signs or the alteration of any existing sign
where a sign permit has been issued, a new sign permit shall be obtained
from the Development Services Department.

All existing signs for which a sign permit has not been granted shall obtain
such permit within thirty (30) days following approval of this ordinance by the
Governing Body.

All signage shall be restricted to, and in conformance with, the Sign Package
Proposal stamp dated February 8, 2010. Any additional signage shall
require an amendment to the zoning ordinance for this property, subject to
approval by the Planning Commission and Governing Body.

Motion passes 8-0.

Chairman _Marsh: Just as a comment from myself, | would agree with Commissioner

Harrelson’s comment. If they comply with the UDO and that’s what they need to operate, that’s
good. Who, in terms of land use and what we do, if it doesn’t comply, I'm not sure I'm in line
with the agreement of saying that who it is depends on how | feel about land use and how we
do things. Now, that’s just myself. That’s a slippery slope, in my opinion. But I'm happy with
this, and voted for it. So, congratulations.



ORDINANCE NO. 10-17

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION TWO OF ORDINANCE NO. 98-70 OF THE
CITY OF OLATHE, KANSAS PERTAINING TO RZ-10-001:

WHEREAS, Rezoning Application No. RZ-10-001 requesting an
amendment to Section Two of Ordinance 98-70 to allow a certain sign package for the

existing development was filed with the City of Olathe, Kansas, on the 8th day of January,
2010; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of such rezoning application was given pursuant
to K.S.A. 12-757 and Section 18.12 of the Unified Development Ordinance; for the
property legally described as follows:

LOT 1 119TH STREET TECH PARK

BEING A PLATTING OF PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 18, IN TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH,
RANGE 24 EAST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN OLATHE, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS.
PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 24 EAST OF THE
6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN OLATHE, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS LYING GENERALLY
NORTHERLY OF 119TH STREET AND EASTERLY OF 118TH TERRACE, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHEAST
1/4, THENCE SOUTH 89°59'52" EAST (ALL BEARINGS HEREIN ARE REFERENCED TO THE SOUTH
LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4 AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF “DIAMANT BOART FIRST PLAT” OF
SOUTH 89°59'52” EAST) ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4, 563.47 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 0°00'08” EAST AT RIGHT ANGLES TO SAID SOUTH LINE, 60.00 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION
OF THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID 119TH STREET WITH THE EASTERLY RIGHT OF
WAY LINE OF SAID 118TH TERRACE, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE
TRACT OF LAND HEREIN DESCRIBED: THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 0°00'08” EAST ON SAID
EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 100.00 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ON SAID EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE ON A CURVE TO THE RIGHT BEING
TANGENT TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE WITH A RADIUS OF 470.00 FEET, DELTA OF 45°00'007,
CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 22°30'08" EAST, CHORD DISTANCE OF 359.72 FEET AND ARC
DISTANCE OF 369.14 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE NORTH 45°00'08" EAST ON SAID
EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 115.90 FEET; THENCE NORTH 44°59'52" WEST ON SAID EASTERLY
RIGHT OF WAY LINE 60.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 45°00°08" EAST, 156.04 FEET TO A POINT OF
CURVATURE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ON A CURVE TO THE RIGHT BEING TANGENT TO THE
LAST DESCRIBED COURSE WITH A RADIUS OF 430.00 FEET, DELTA OF 41°48'37”, CHORD BEARING
OF NORTH 65°54'26” EAST, CHORD DISTANCE OF 306.87 FEET AND ARC DISTANCE OF 313.78
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0°00'08” WEST, 792.33 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF
SAID 119TH STREET; THENCE NORTH 89°59'52” WEST ON SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE,
567.65 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. (SAID TRACT CONTAINS 7.785 ACRES)

LOT 2 119TH STREET TECH PARK, 2ND ADDITION

PART OF THE S.E. QUARTER OF SEC. 18, TWP. 13, RG. 24119th ST. & RENNER, OLATHE, JOHNSON
COUNTY, KS

ACCORDING TO THE RECORD PLAT THEREOF.

LOT 3 119TH STREET TECH PARK, 3RD ADDITION
SE 1/4 SEC. 18, T13S, R24E
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A SUBDIVISION OF LAND IN OLATHE, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS

LOT 4 119TH STREET TECH PARK, 3RD ADDITION
119TH STREET TECH PARK 3RD ADDITION, SE 1/4 SEC. 18, T13S, R24E
A SUBDIVISION OF LAND IN OLATHE, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS

LOT 5 119TH STREET TECH PARK, 4TH ADDITION
119TH STREET TECH PARK 3RD ADDITION, SE 1/4 SEC. 18, T13S, R24E
A SUBDIVISION OF LAND IN OLATHE, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS

LOT 6 119TH STREET TECH PARK, 5TH ADDITION

SE 1/4, OF SEC. 18, T13S, R24E IN OLATHE, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS.

DESCRIPTION OF SURVEYED TRACT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 18,
TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 24 EAST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN OLATHE, JOHNSON
COUNTY, KANSAS, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; COMMENCING AT THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 18-13-24; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 52
SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 18-13-24, 73.88 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00
DEGREES 00 MINUTES 08 SECONDS EAST, 60.00 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY
LINE LINE OF 119TH STREET, POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE HEREIN
DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 52 SECONDS WEST,
ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 18-13-24, 459.13
FEET, TO A POINT BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 5, “119TH STREET TECH PARK 4TH
ADDITION” A SUBDIVISION OF LAND IN THE CITY OF OLATHE, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS;
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 08 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID
LOT 5, 733.00 FEET, TO A POINT BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 5; THENCE NORTH 89
DEGREES 59 MINUTES 52 SECONDS WEST, 104.25 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ON A CURVE
TO THE RIGHT, BEING TANGENT TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 220.00
FEET, A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 75 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 36 SECONDS EAST, AN ARC
LENGTH OF 113.18 DEGREES AND A CHORD LENGTH OF 111.93 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 60
DEGREES 31 MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST, 145.42 FEET, THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A
CURVE TO THE LEFT, BEING TANGENT TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE, HAVING A RADIUS OF
280.00 FEET, A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 74 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST, AN ARC
LENGTH OF 137.54 FEET AND A CHORD LENGTH OF 136.16 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREES 04
MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST, 596.90 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINS 316,245.28
SQUARE FEET OR 7.26 ACRES. ERROR OF CLOSURE 1 IN 202,972

WHEREAS, a public hearing on such application was held before the
Planning Commission of the City of Olathe, Kansas, on the 22nd day of February, 2010;
and

WHEREAS, said Planning Commission has recommended that such
amendment application be approved.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF
THE CITY OF OLATHE, KANSAS:

SECTION ONE: That this amendment to an existing Planned District is
approved subject to the following additional stipulations being added to Section Two of
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Ordinance 98-70

g. Prior to publishing the zoning ordinance and within thirty (30) days following
approval by the Governing Body, a statement that a preliminary development
plan has been approved for the subject property shall be filed in accordance
with the requirements of Section 18.12.230 of the Unified Development
Ordinance (UDO).

h. Prior to the construction of any new signs or the alteration of any existing sign
where a sign permit has been issued, a new sign permit shall be obtained
from the Development Services Department.

I. All existing signs for which a sign permit has not been granted shall obtain
such permit within thirty (30) days following approval of this ordinance by the
Governing Body.

J- All signage shall be restricted to, and in conformance with, the Sign Package
Proposal stamp dated February 8, 2010. Any additional signage shall
require an amendment to the zoning ordinance for this property, subject to
approval by the Planning Commission and Governing Body.

SECTION TWO: Prior to publishing this ordinance and within thirty (30)
days following approval by the Governing Body, a statement that an amended preliminary
development plan has been approved for the subject property shall be filed in accordance
with the requirements of Section 18.12.230 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).

SECTION THREE: That this Ordinance shall take effect from and after its
passage and publication as provided by law.

PASSED by the Council this 23rd day of March, 2010

SIGNED by the Mayor this 23d day of March, 2010

Mayor
ATTEST:

City Clerk

(Seal)
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APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

AD - A
Department: Legal Council Meeting Date: March 23, 2010
Staff Contact: Tom Glinstra; Ron Shaver
Subject: Consideration of Ordinance No. 10-18 granting a franchise to American Fiber Systems,

Inc. to construct, operate and maintain a telecommunications system in Olathe.

Key Result Area: Economic Sustainabiilty

Executive Summary: This item was presented as a report at the March 9, 2010 City Council Study
Session. Attached is a copy of the proposed franchise agreement between the City and American Fiber
Systems, Inc. (“AFS”) (Attachment A). The franchise would allow AFS to use the City's right-of-way to
construct facilities for the purpose of providing telecommunication services in Olathe. AFS would provide high
speed voice, internet, and data services for business customers in Olathe with this franchise (AFS does not
provide service to residential customers).

The franchise would be for two (2) years with renewal for up to eight (8) additional two (2) year periods. The
City would receive compensation for the use of the right-of-way at five percent (5%) of the total gross revenues
for services sold to customers within the corporate boundaries of the City.

The franchise provides that AFS will have the right to construct, maintain and operate its facilities along, across,
upon and under the public right-of-way. Such facilities must be constructed and maintained so as not to
obstruct or hinder the usual travel or public safety on such public ways or obstruct the legal use by other
utilities. AFS’s use of the public right-of-way will always be subject and subordinate to the reasonable public
health, safety and welfare requirements and regulations of the City. The City may exercise its home rule
powers in its administration and regulation related to the management of the public right-of-way; provided that
any such exercise must be competitively neutral and may not be unreasonable or discriminatory. AFS will be
subject to all applicable laws and statutes, and/or rules, regulations, policies, resolutions and ordinances
adopted by the City, relating to the construction and use of the public right-of-way.

The franchise is substantially the same as the franchises granted to Time Warner and Verizon in 2008.

AFS is based in Rochester, New York and has been in business since 2000. AFS currently operates in Ohio,
Minnesota, Kansas, Missouri, Georgia, Idaho, Utah, Tennessee and Nevada and is certificated and regulated by
each state’'s Public Service Commission as well as the Federal Communications Commission. Within
Kansas, AFS is currently franchised to provide services in Fairway, Leawood, Lenexa, Merriam, Mission and
Westwood.

Fiscal Impact: The City would receive compensation for the use of the right-of-way at five percent
(5%) of the total gross revenues for services sold to customers within the corporate boundaries of the
City.

Recommendations/Options/Action Requested: Adopt Ordinance No. 10-18 granting a franchise
to American Fiber Systems, Inc. to construct, operate and maintain a telecommunications system in
Olathe.

Attachments: Attachment A — American Fiber Systems, Inc. Franchise Ordinance




ATTACHMENT A

ORDINANCE NO. 10-18

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING TO AMERICAN FIBER SYSTEMS, INC., A CONTRACT
FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE AND MAINTAIN A
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM IN THE CITY OF OLATHE, KANSAS AND
PRESCRIBING THE TERMS OF SAID CONTRACT FRANCHISE.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF
OLATHE, KANSAS:

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS.

For the purposes of this Ordinance the following words and phrases shall have the meaning given herein.
When not inconsistent within the context, words used in the present tense include the future tense and
words in the single number include the plural number. The word "shall" is always mandatory, and not
merely directory.

a. "Access line" - shall mean and be limited to retail billed and collected residential lines; business
lines; ISDN lines; PBX trunks and simulated exchange Access lines provided by a central office
based switching arrangement where all stations served by such simulated exchange Access lines
are used by a single customer of the provider of such arrangement. Access line may not be
construed to include interoffice transport or other transmission media that do not terminate at an
end user customer's premises, or to permit duplicate or multiple assessment of Access line rates
on the provision of a single service or on the multiple communications paths derived from a billed
and collected Access line. Access line shall not include the following: Wireless
telecommunications services, the sale or lease of unbundled loop Facilities, special access
services, lines providing only data services without voice services processed by a
telecommunications Local exchange service provider or private line service arrangements.

b. "Access line count” - means the number of Access lines serving consumers within the corporate
boundaries of the City on the last day of each month.

C. "Access line fee" - means a fee determined by the City, up to a maximum as set out in K.S.A.
12-2001(j), and amendments thereto, to be used by Grantee in calculating the amount of Access
line remittance.

d. "Access line remittance™ - means the amount to be paid by Grantee to City, the total of which is
calculated by multiplying the Access line fee, as determined in the City, by the number of Access
lines served by Grantee within the City for each month in that calendar quarter.

e. "City" - means the City of Olathe, Kansas.

f. "Contract franchise" - means this Ordinance granting the right, privilege and franchise to Grantee
to provide telecommunications services within the City.

g. "Facilities" - means telephone and telecommunication lines, conduits, manholes, ducts, wires,
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cables, pipes, poles, towers, vaults, appliances, optic fiber, and all equipment used to provide
Telecommunication services.

h. "Grantee" - means American Fiber Systems, Inc., a telecommunications local exchange service
provider offering Local exchange and other Telecommunications and information service within
the City. References to Grantee shall also include as appropriate any and all successors and
assigns.

i. “Gross Receipts” - shall mean only those receipts collected from within the corporate boundaries
of the City enacting the Contract franchise and which are derived from the following:
(1) Recurring Local exchange service for business and residence which includes basic exchange
service, touch tone, optional calling features and measured local calls; (2) Recurring Local
exchange Access line services for pay phone lines provided by Grantee to all pay phone service
providers; (3) Local directory assistance revenue; (4) Line status verification/busy interrupt
revenue; (5) Local operator assistance revenue; (6) Nonrecurring Local exchange service
revenue which shall include customer service for installation of lines, reconnection of service and
charge for duplicate bills; and (7) Revenue received by Grantee from resellers or others which use
Grantee’s Facilities to provide services described in Section (1) through (6) above. All other
revenues, including, but not limited to, revenues from extended area service, the sale or lease of
unbundled network elements, nonregulated services, carrier and end user access, long distance,
wireless telecommunications services, lines providing only data service without voice services
processed by a telecommunications Local exchange service provider, private line service
arrangements, internet, broadband and all other services not wholly local in nature are excluded
from Gross Receipts. Gross Receipts shall be reduced by bad debt expenses. Uncollectible and
late charges shall not be included within Gross Receipts. If Grantee offers additional services of a
wholly local nature which if in existence on or before July 1, 2002 would have been included with
the definition of Gross Receipts, such services shall be included from the date of the offering of
such services within the City.

J. "Local exchange service" - means local switched telecommunications service within any Local
exchange service area approved by the state Corporation Commission, regardless of the medium
by which the local telecommunications service is provided. The term Local exchange service shall
not include wireless communication services.

k. "Public right-of-way" - means only the area of real property in which the City has a dedicated or
acquired right-of-way interest in the real property. It shall include the area on, below or above the
present and future streets, alleys, avenues, roads, highways, parkways or boulevards dedicated or
acquired as right-of-way. The term does not include the airwaves above a right-of-way with
regard to wireless telecommunications or other non-wire telecommunications or broadcast service,
easements obtained by utilities or private easements in platted subdivisions or tracts.

l. "Telecommunication services" - means providing the means of transmission, between or among
points specified by the user, of information of the user's choosing, without change in the form or
content of the information as sent and received.

SECTION 2. GRANT OF CONTRACT FRANCHISE.

a. There is hereby granted to Grantee this nonexclusive Contract franchise to construct, maintain,
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extend and operate its Facilities along, across, upon or under any Public right-of-way for the
purpose of supplying Telecommunication services to the consumers or recipients of such service
located within the corporate boundaries of the City, for the term of this Contract franchise, subject
to the terms and conditions of this Contract franchise.

b. The grant of this Contract franchise by the City shall not convey title, equitable or legal, in the
Public right-of-way, and shall give only the right to occupy the Public right-of-way, for the
purposes and for the period stated in this Contract franchise. This Contract franchise does not:

) Grant the right to use Facilities or any other property, telecommunications related or
otherwise, owned or controlled by the City or a third-party, without the consent of such
party;

) Grant the authority to construct, maintain or operate any Facility or related appurtenance

on property owned by the City outside of the Public right-of-way, specifically including,
but not limited to, parkland property, City Hall property or public works facility property;
or

3 Excuse Grantee from obtaining appropriate access or attachment agreements before
locating its Facilities on the Facilities owned or controlled by the City or a third-party.

C. As a condition of this grant, Grantee is required to obtain and is responsible for any necessary
permit, license, certification, grant, registration or any other authorization required by any
appropriate governmental entity, including, but not limited to, the City, the FCC or the Kansas
Corporation Commission (KCC). Grantee shall also comply with all applicable laws, statutes
and/or City regulations (including, but not limited to those relating to the construction and use of
the Public right-of-way or other public property).

d. Grantee shall not provide any additional services for which a franchise is required by the City
without first obtaining a separate franchise from the City or amending this Contract franchise, and
Grantee shall not knowingly allow the use of its Facilities by any third party in violation of any
federal, state or local law. In particular, this Contract franchise does not provide Grantee the right
to provide cable service as a cable operator (as defined by 47 U.S.C. § 522 (5)) within the City.
Grantee agrees that this franchise does not permit it to operate an open video system without
payment of fees permitted by 47 U.S.C. § 573(c)(2)(B) and without complying with FCC
regulations promulgated pursuant to 47 U.S.C. § 573.

e. This authority to occupy the Public right-of-way shall be granted in a competitively neutral and
nondiscriminatory basis and not in conflict with state or federal law.

SECTION 3. USE OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY.

a. Pursuant to K.S.A. 17-1902, and amendments thereto, and subject to the provisions of this
Contract franchise, Grantee shall have the right to construct, maintain and operate its Facilities
along, across, upon and under the Public right-of-way. Such Facilities shall be so constructed and
maintained as not to obstruct or hinder the usual travel or public safety on such public ways or
obstruct the legal use by other utilities.
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b. Grantee’s use of the Public right-of-way shall always be subject and subordinate to the reasonable
public health, safety and welfare requirements and regulations of the City, including, but not limited
to, Chapter 12.08 of the Olathe Municipal Code and any amendments thereto. The City may
exercise its home rule powers in its administration and regulation related to the management of the
Public right-of-way; provided that any such exercise must be competitively neutral and may not be
unreasonable or discriminatory. Grantee and all other right-of-way users shall be subject to all
applicable laws and statutes, and/or rules, regulations, policies, resolutions and ordinances adopted
by the City, relating to the construction and use of the Public right-of-way.

C. Grantee shall participate in the Kansas One Call utility location program.

d. City may require Grantee to repair all damage to a Public right-of-way caused by the activities of
Grantee, or of any agent, affiliate, employee, or subcontractor of Grantee, while occupying,
installing, repairing or maintaining Facilities in a Public right-of-way and to return the right-of-way,
to its functional equivalence before the damage pursuant to the reasonable requirements and
specifications of the City. If Grantee fails to make the repairs required by the City, the City may
effect those repairs and charge the provider the cost of those repairs. If the City incurs damages
as a result of a violation of this subsection, then the City shall have a cause of action against
Grantee for violation of this subsection and may recover its damages, including reasonable
attorney fees, if Grantee is found liable by a court of competent jurisdiction.

e. If requested by the City, in order to accomplish construction and maintenance activities directly
related to improvements for the health, safety and welfare of the public, Grantee promptly shall
remove its Facilities from the Public right-of-way or shall relocate or adjust its Facilities within the
Public right-of-way at no cost to the political subdivision, providing such request binds all users of
such right-of-way. Such relocation or adjustment shall be completed as soon as reasonably
possible within the time set forth in any written request by the City for such relocation or
adjustment, providing that the City shall use its best efforts to provide Grantee with a minimum of
one hundred eighty (180) days advance notice to comply with any such relocation or adjustment.
Any damages suffered by the City or its contractors as a result of Grantee’s failure to timely
relocate or adjust its Facilities shall be borne by Grantee. Grantee shall designate one (1) person
within its organization by his/her employment position to whom relocation notices shall be sent and
with whom rests the responsibility to facilitate all necessary communications within Grantee’s
various areas.

Where a project referenced in the preceding paragraph is primarily for private benefit (provided,
however, that projects that are a part of a City-created tax increment financing or transportation
development district are not considered primarily for private benefit), the City shall require, as a
condition of its approval of any request for alteration of the Public right-of-way from any private
party or parties, that such private party or parties shall reimburse Grantee for the cost of
relocation. Grantee understands however that the City has no obligation to collect such
reimbursement.

SECTION 4. COMPENSATION TO THE CITY.
a. In consideration of this Contract franchise, Grantee agrees to remit to the City a franchise fee of

five percent (5%) of Gross Receipts. To determine the franchise fee, Grantee shall calculate the
Gross Receipts and multiply such receipts by 5%. Thereafter, subject to subsection (b) hereafter,
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compensation for each calendar year of the remaining term of this Contract franchise shall
continue to be based on a sum equal to 5% of Gross Receipts, unless the City notifies Grantee
prior to ninety days (90) before the end of the calendar year that it intends to switch to an Access
line fee in the following calendar year; provided, such Access line fee shall not exceed the
maximum Access line fee allowed by State statute. In the event the City elects to change its basis
of compensation, nothing herein precludes the City from switching its basis of compensation back;
provided the City notifies Grantee prior to ninety days (90) before the end of the calendar year.

Beginning January 1, 2004, and every 36 months thereafter, the City, subject to the public
notification procedures set forth in K.S.A. 12-2001 (m), and amendments thereto, may elect to
adopt an increased Access line fee or Gross Receipts fee subject to the provisions and maximum
fee limitations contained in K.S.A. 12-2001, and amendments thereto, or may choose to decline all
or any portion of any increase in the Access line fee.

Grantee shall pay on a quarterly basis without requirement for invoice or reminder from the City,
and within forty five (45) days of the last day of the quarter for which the payment applies,
franchise fees due and payable to the City. If any franchise fee, or any portion thereof, is not
postmarked or delivered on or before the due date, pursuant to K.S.A. 16-201, interest thereon
shall accrue from the due date until received, at the applicable statutory interest rate.

Upon thirty (30) days prior written request by the City, but no more than once per quarter,
Grantee shall submit to the City a certified statement showing the manner in which the franchise
fee was calculated.

No acceptance by the City of any franchise fee shall be construed as an accord that the amount

paid is in fact the correct amount, nor shall acceptance of any franchise fee payment be construed

as a release of any claim of the City. Any dispute concerning the amount due under this Section
shall be resolved in the manner set forth in K.S.A. 12-2001, and amendments thereto.

The City shall have the right to examine, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to Grantee no
more often than once per calendar year, those records necessary to verify the correctness of the
franchise fees paid by Grantee.

Unless previously paid, within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this Contract franchise,
Grantee shall pay to the City a one-time application fee of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00). The
parties agree that such fee reimburses the City for its reasonable, actual and verifiable costs of
reviewing and approving this Contract franchise.

The franchise fee required herein shall be in addition to, not in lieu of, all taxes, charges,
assessments, licenses, fees and impositions otherwise applicable that are or may be imposed by
the City under K.S.A. 12-2001 and 17-1902, and amendments thereto. The franchise fee is

compensation pursuant to K.S.A 12-2001(j) and shall in no way be deemed a tax of any kind.

Grantee shall remit an Access line (franchise) fee or a Gross Receipts (franchise) fee to the City
on those Access lines that have been resold to another telecommunications Local exchange
service provider, but in such case the City shall not collect a franchise fee from the reseller
service provider and shall not require the reseller service provider to enter a contract franchise
ordinance.
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SECTION 5. INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS.

It shall be the responsibility of Grantee to take adequate measures to protect and defend its Facilities in the
Public right-of-way from harm or damage. If Grantee fails to accurately or timely locate Facilities when
requested, in accordance with the Kansas Underground Utility Damage Prevention Act, K.S.A. 66-1801
et seq., it has no claim for costs or damages against the City and its authorized contractors unless such
parties are responsible for the harm or damage by its negligence or intentional conduct. The City and its
authorized contractors shall be responsible to take reasonable precautionary measures including calling for
utility locations and observing marker posts when working near Grantee’s Facilities.

Grantee shall indemnify and hold the City and its officers and employees harmless against any and all
claims, lawsuits, judgments, costs, liens, losses, expenses, fees (including reasonable attorney fees and
costs of defense), proceedings, actions, demands, causes of action, liability and suits of any kind and
nature, including personal or bodily injury (including death), property damage or other harm for which
recovery of damages is sought, to the extent that it is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
caused by the negligence of Grantee, any agent, officer, director, representative, employee, affiliate or
subcontractor of Grantee, or its respective officers, agents, employees, directors or representatives, while
installing, repairing or maintaining Facilities in the Public right-of-way.

The indemnity provided by this subsection does not apply to any liability resulting from the negligence of
the City, its officers, employees, contractors or subcontractors. If Grantee and the City are found jointly
liable by a court of competent jurisdiction, liability shall be apportioned comparatively in accordance with
the laws of this state without, however, waiving any governmental immunity available to the City under
state law and without waiving any defenses of the parties under state or federal law. This section is solely
for the benefit of the City and Grantee and does not create or grant any rights, contractual or otherwise, to
any other person or entity.

Grantee and City shall promptly advise the other in writing of any known claim or demand against Grantee
or the City related to or arising out of Grantee’s or the City’s activities in the Public right-of-way.

SECTION 6. INSURANCE AND BONDS REQUIREMENTS

a. During the term of this Contract franchise, Grantee shall obtain and maintain insurance coverage
at its sole expense, with financially reputable insurers that are authorized or permitted to do
business in the state of Kansas. Should Grantee elect to use the services of an affiliated captive
insurance company for this purpose, that company shall possess a certificate of authority from the
Kansas Insurance Commissioner. Grantee shall provide not less than the following insurance:

1) Workers’ compensation as provided for under any worker’s compensation or similar law
in the jurisdiction where any work is performed equal to the amount required by Kansas
law; and

) Employers’ liability limit with a limit of $1,000, 000 each accident/disease/policy limit law;
and

€)) Commercial general liability, including coverage for contractual liability and products
completed operations liability on an occurrence basis and not a claims made basis, with a
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limit of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) combined single limit per
occurrence for bodily injury and property damage liability, including personal injury. The
City shall be included as an additional insured as its interest may appear with respect to
liability arising from Grantee’s operations under this Contract franchise.

b. As an alternative to the requirements of subsection a., Grantee may demonstrate to the
satisfaction of the City that it is self-insured and as such Grantee has the ability to provide
coverage in an amount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and Two
Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in aggregate, to protect the City from and against all claims by any
person whatsoever for loss or damage from personal injury, bodily injury, death or property
damage occasioned by Grantee, or alleged to so have been caused or occurred.

C. Grantee shall, as a material condition of this Contract franchise, prior to the commencement of
any work and within ten (10) days of any renewal thereof, deliver to the City a certificate of
insurance or evidence of self-insurance, reasonably satisfactory in form and content to the City,
evidencing that the above insurance is in force and containing a provision stating that the insurer or
its authorized representative(s) shall endeavor to provide thirty (30) days prior written notice of
intent to non-renew, cancellation or material adverse change to City, except that ten (10) day
notice for nonpayment of premium shall apply. Upon request by the City, Grantee shall make
Grantee’s policies or parts thereof as requested available for the City’s review. Upon completion
of such review, the policies will be returned to the Grantee.

d. Grantee shall, as a material condition of this Contract franchise, a) prior to the commencement of
any work, deliver to the City a construction bond in the amount of Fifty Thousand Dollars
($50,000). The bond is to ensure the appropriate and timely construction of Facilities located in
the Public right-of-way in accordance with Chapter 12.08 of the Olathe Municipal Code and any
amendments thereto, and must be issued by a surety company authorized to transact business in
the State of Kansas, and satisfactory to the City Attorney in form and substance. The construction
bond shall remain in effect until the City has received Grantee’s written certification that all
installation of the Facilities within the Public right-of-way has been completed. Thereafter, the
City shall, within thirty (30) days of receipt of such certification, return the bond to Grantee, and b)
upon return of the construction bond by the City Grantee shall, within thirty (30) days, deliver to
the City a performance bond in the amount of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) to ensure the
on-going performance by Grantee of its obligations under this Contact franchise. This bond shall
be issued by a surety company authorized to transact business in the State of Kansas, and
satisfactory to the City Attorney in form and substance and shall be maintained by Grantee during
the initial term and all subsequent renewal terms of this Contract franchise.

SECTION 7. REVOCATION AND TERMINATION.

In case of failure on the part of Grantee to comply with any of the provisions of this Contract franchise, or
if Grantee should do or cause to be done any act or thing prohibited by or in violation of the terms of this
Contract franchise, Grantee shall forfeit all rights, privileges and franchise granted herein, and all such
rights, privileges and franchise hereunder shall cease, terminate and become null and void, and this
Contract franchise shall be deemed revoked or terminated, provided that said revocation or termination,
shall not take effect until the City has completed the following procedures: Before the City proceeds to
revoke and terminate this Contract franchise, it shall first serve a written notice upon Grantee, setting
forth in detail the neglect or failure complained of, and Grantee shall have sixty (60) days thereafter in

7
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which to comply with the conditions and requirements of this Contract franchise. If at the end of such
sixty (60) day period the City deems that the conditions have not been complied with, the City shall take
action to revoke and terminate this Contract franchise by an affirmative vote of the Governing Body
present at the meeting and voting, setting out the grounds upon which this Contract franchise is to be
revoked and terminated; provided, to afford Grantee due process, Grantee shall first be provided
reasonable notice of the date, time and location of the Governing Body’s consideration, and shall have the
right to address the Governing Body regarding such matter; and further provided, if the nature of the
default is such that it cannot be reasonably cured within the above said sixty (60) day period, and the
Governing Body believes the Grantee has in good faith timely commenced its cure and is diligently
pursuing the completion of the same, Grantee shall be given a reasonable additional period of time to
complete its cure. Nothing herein shall prevent either party from invoking any other remedy that may
otherwise exist at law. Upon any determination by the Governing Body to revoke and terminate this
Contract franchise, Grantee shall have thirty (30) days to appeal such decision to the District Court of
Johnson County, Kansas. This Contract franchise shall be deemed revoked and terminated at the end of
this thirty (30) day period, unless Grantee has instituted such an appeal. If Grantee does timely institute
such an appeal, such revocation and termination shall remain pending and subject to the court’s final
judgment. Provided, however, that the failure of Grantee to comply with any of the provisions of this
Contract franchise or the doing or causing to be done by Grantee of anything prohibited by or in violation
of the terms of this Contract franchise shall not be a ground for the revocation or termination thereof when
such act or omission on the part of Grantee is due to any cause or delay beyond the control of Grantee or
to bona fide legal proceedings.

SECTION 8. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.

a. The City and Grantee hereby acknowledge that the City, in accordance with 47 U.S.C.A. 253,
may not prohibit or have the effect of prohibiting the ability of any entity to provide any interstate
or intrastate telecommunications service. To the extent permitted by law, the City specifically
reserves its right and authority as a public entity with responsibilities towards its citizens, to
participate in proceedings concerning Grantee’s rates and services to ensure the rendering of
efficient Telecommunications service and any other services at reasonable rates, and the
maintenance of the Public right-of-way and Grantee’s property in good repair.

b. In granting its consent hereunder, the City does not in any manner waive its regulatory or other
rights and powers under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Kansas as the same may be
amended, its Home Rule powers under the Constitution of the State of Kansas, nor any of its
rights and powers under or by virtue of present or future ordinances of the City.

C. In granting its consent hereunder, Grantee does not in any manner waive its regulatory or other
rights and powers under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Kansas or applicable Federal
laws and regulations, as the same may be amended, or under the Constitution of the State of
Kansas, nor any of its rights and powers under or by virtue of present or future ordinances of the
City.

d. In entering into this Contract franchise, neither the City's nor Grantee's present or future legal
rights, positions, claims, assertions or arguments before any administrative agency or court of law
are in any way prejudiced or waived. By entering into the Contract franchise, neither the City nor
Grantee waive any rights, but instead expressly reserve any and all rights, remedies, and
arguments the City or Grantee may have at law or equity, without limitation, to argue, assert,
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and/or take any position as to the legality or appropriateness of any present or future laws,
non-franchise ordinances and/or rulings.

SECTION 9. FAILURE TO ENFORCE.

The failure of either the City or the Grantee to insist in any one or more instances upon the strict
performance of any one or more of the terms or provisions of this Contract franchise shall not be
construed as a waiver or relinquishment for the future of any such term or provision, and the same shall
continue in full force and effect. No waiver or relinquishment shall be deemed to have been made by the
City or the Grantee unless said waiver or relinquishment is in writing and signed by both the City and the
Grantee.

SECTION 10. TERM AND TERMINATION DATE.

a. This Contract franchise shall be effective for a term beginning on the effective date of this
Contract franchise and ending two (2) years after the effective date. Thereafter, this Contract
franchise will automatically renew for up to eight (8) additional two (2) year terms, unless either
party notifies the other party of its intent to terminate the Contract franchise at least one hundred
and eighty (180) days before the expiration of the then current term. The additional terms shall be
deemed a continuation of this Contract franchise and not as a new franchise or amendment.

b. Upon written request of either the City or Grantee, this Contract franchise shall be renegotiated at
any time in accordance with the requirements of state law upon any of the following events:
changes in federal, state, or local laws, regulations, or orders that materially affect any rights or
obligations of either the City or Grantee, including but not limited to the scope of the Contract
franchise granted to Grantee or the compensation to be received by the City hereunder.

C. If any clause, sentence, section, or provision of K.S.A. 12-2001, and amendments thereto, shall be
held to be invalid by a court or administrative agency of competent jurisdiction, provided such
order is not stayed, either the City or Grantee may elect to amend the Contract franchise or
terminate the entire Contract franchise, as appropriate. In the event of such invalidity, if Grantee
is required by law to enter into a Contract franchise with the City, the parties agree to act in good
faith in promptly negotiating a new Contract franchise.

d. Amendments under this Section, if any, shall be made by contract franchise ordinance as
prescribed by statute. This Contract franchise shall remain in effect, or shall be extended by the
parties, according to its terms, pending completion of any review or negotiation provided by this
section. Such extension period shall be deemed a continuation of this Contract franchise and not
as a new contract franchise ordinance or amendment.

e. In the event the parties are actively negotiating in good faith a new contract franchise ordinance
or an amendment to the Contract franchise upon the expiration or termination date of this Contract
franchise, the parties by written mutual agreement may extend the expiration or termination date
of this Contract franchise to allow for further negotiations. Such extension period shall be deemed
a continuation of this Contract franchise and not as a new contract franchise ordinance or
amendment.
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SECTION 11. POINT OF CONTACT AND NOTICES

Grantee shall at all times maintain with the City a point of contact who shall be available at all times to act
on behalf of Grantee in the event of an emergency. Grantee shall provide the City with said contact’s
name, address, telephone number, fax number and e-mail address. Emergency notice by Grantee to the
City may be made by telephone to the City Clerk or the City Engineer. All other notices between the
parties shall be in writing and shall be made by personal delivery, depositing such notice in the U.S. Mail,
Certified Mail, return receipt requested, or overnight delivery by a nationally recognized courier. All
written notices shall be deemed delivered upon actual receipt or refusal of delivery.

The City: Grantee:

For Non-Operational Issues Only:
City of Olathe, Kansas American Fiber Systems, Inc.
100 East Santa Fe 100 Meridian Centre, Suite 300
P.O. Box 768 Rochester, NY 14618
Olathe, Kansas 66051-0768 Attn: Bruce T. Frankiewich
Attn: City Clerk fax: (585) 785-5822
(913) 971-8525 fax bfrankiewich@afsnetworks.com

For Operational Issues Only:
American Fiber Systems, Inc.
Dwight Davis

Fax (816) 254-0399
ddavis@afsnetworks.com

or to replacement addresses that may be later designed in writing.

SECTION 12. TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT.

This Contract franchise is granted solely to the Grantee and shall not be transferred or assigned without
the prior written approval of the City; provided that such transfer or assignment may occur without written
consent of the City to any entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with Grantee. The
parties acknowledge that said City consent shall only be with regard to the transfer or assignment of this
Contract franchise, and that, in accordance with Kansas Statutes, the City does not have the authority to
require City approval of transfers of ownership or control of the business or assets of Grantee. In the
event of any transfer or assignment of either this Contract franchise or Grantee’s business or assets,
Grantee shall: timely notify the City of the successor entity; provide a point of contact for the successor
entity; and advise the City of the effective date of the transfer or assignment. Additionally, Grantee’s
obligations under this Contract franchise with regard to indemnity, bonding and insurance shall continue
until the transferee or assignee has taken the appropriate measures necessary to assume and replace the
same, the intent being that there shall be no lapse in any coverage as a result of the transfer or
assignment. In the event an entity acquires substantially all of the assets of Grantee, said successor entity
shall be allowed to operate under this Contract franchise for up to one hundred and eighty (180) days from
the date of transfer; provided, within thirty (30) days from the date of transfer said successor entity makes
application with the City for either a new ordinance or the transfer of this Contract franchise, and provides
the City with written evidence satisfying the obligations under this Contract franchise with regard to
indemnity, bonding and insurance.

10
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SECTION 13. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Information provided to the City under K.S.A. 12-2001 shall be governed by confidentiality procedures in
compliance with K.S.A. 45-215 and 66-1220a, et seq., and amendments thereto. Grantee agrees to
indemnify and hold the City harmless from any and all penalties or costs, including reasonable attorney's
fees, arising from the actions of Grantee, or of the City at the written request of Grantee, in seeking to
safeguard the confidentiality of information provided by Grantee to the City under this Contract franchise.

SECTION 14. ACCEPTANCE OF TERMS.

Grantee shall have sixty (60) days after the final passage and approval of this Contract franchise to file
with the City Clerk its acceptance in writing of the provisions, terms and conditions of this Contract
franchise, which acceptance shall be duly acknowledged before some officer authorized by law to
administer oaths; and when so accepted, this Contract franchise and acceptance shall constitute a contract
between the City and Grantee subject to the provisions of the laws of the state of Kansas.

SECTION 15. PAYMENT OF COSTS.

In accordance with statute, Grantee shall be responsible for payment of all costs and expense of publishing
this Contract franchise, and any amendments thereof.

SECTION 16. SEVERABILITY.

If any clause, sentence, or section of this Contract franchise, or any portion thereof, shall be held to be
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder, as a
whole or any part thereof, other than the part declared invalid; provided, however, the City or Grantee may
elect to declare the entire Contract franchise is invalidated if the portion declared invalid is, in the judgment
of the City or Grantee, an essential part of the Contract franchise, provided, however, if Grantee is
required by law to enter into a Contract franchise with the City, the parties agree to act in good faith in
promptly negotiating a new Contract franchise, and this Contract franchise shall remain in effect according
to its terms pending completion of any renegotiation provided by this section.

SECTION 17. FORCE MAJEURE.

Each and every provision hereof shall be reasonably subject to acts of God, fires, strikes, riots, floods, war
and other disasters beyond Grantee’s or the City’s control.

PASSED by the Governing Body of the City of Olathe, Kansas this 23rd day of March, 2010.

SIGNED by the Mayor this 23rd day of March, 2010.

BY: CITY OF OLATHE, KANSAS

11
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Michael E. Copeland
Mayor

ATTESTED BY:

Donald T. Howell
City Clerk

(Seal)

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Thomas A. Glinstra
City Attorney

Publish one time and return one Proof of Publication to the City Clerk and one to the City Attorney.

12



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
AD-B

Department: Legal Council Meeting Date: March 23, 2010

Staff Contact: Tom Glinstra, Ron Shaver

Subject: Consideration of Ordinance No. 10-19 adding Chapter 2.86 to the Olathe Municipal
Code establishing the City of Olathe Land Bank.

Key Result Area: Economic Sustainability

Executive Summary: This item was discussed at the March 9, 2010 City Council Study Session.
Staff was recently informed by Johnson County that additional Neighborhood Stabilization Program
(NSP) funds previously allocated to another community could be made available to Olathe if Olathe
could make use of the funds. Staff submitted a request for funds (Attachment A) which would involve
using the funds to purchase foreclosed properties, place the properties in a Land Bank, demolish the
structures on the properties, and partner with local not-for-profit entities to construct moderate to low
income housing on the properties. The City has been notified by Johnson County that it has been
conditionally approved to receive an additional $348,882.57 of NSP funds so long as Olathe:

(1) Creates a Land Bank to hold the properties, and
(2) Commits all of the funds by September 15, 2010.

Attached is a summary of how a Land Bank would operate (Attachment B) and an Ordinance adding
Chapter 2.86 to the Olathe Municipal Code establishing the Land Bank (Attachment C). The
legislation enabling all cities in Kansas to create land banks, H.B. 2155 (codified as K.S.A. 12-5901 et
seq.), adopted by the Legislature in 2009, is also attached (Attachment D).

Adoption of the Ordinance would authorize creation of the Land Bank Board of Trustees (consisting of
members of the Governing Body). The Land Bank would be able to acquire property by purchase,
gift, or devise for the purpose of returning unproductive parcels of land to productive use.

Fiscal Impact: Creation of the Land Bank and use of the NSP funds would increase investments
in neighborhoods with foreclosed properties.

Recommendations/Options/Action Requested: Adopt Ordinance No. 10-19 adding Chapter
2.86 to the Olathe Municipal Code establishing the City of Olathe Land Bank.

Attachments: Attachment A — Johnson County NSP Request for Funds
Attachment B — Land Bank Summary
Attachment C — OMC Chapter 2.86 — Land Bank
Attachment D — Land Bank Legislation
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Johnson County, Kansas
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) Request for Funds

Activity Name: Olathe Land Bank Program

Activity Type: Purchase and demolish abandoned or foreclosed upon homes located in Olathe. Vacant land will be
placed in a land bank up to 10 years until the City, Habitat for Humanities or like organization builds affordable
house for a low, moderate and middle income families (Equal to or less than 120% of Median Income with 25%
directed toward families with incomes of less than 50%) on the vacant land.

National Objective: Benefit low, moderate and middle income households as stated by Section 2301 (f)(3)(A).
HERA identifies low, moderate and middle income individuals and families whose income does not exceed 120
percent of area median income for the Kansas City Metro Area.

Projected Start Date: April 1, 2010

Projected End Date: November 1, 2010

Responsible Organization: The City of Olathe will be implementing this activity. Address for City of Olathe is P.O.
Box 768, 100 East Santa Fe, Olathe, Kansas 66051-0768. The contact person for this activity is Mr. Steve Franks,
Director of Development Services Department. He can be reached at (913) 971-8503.

Location Description: The City of Olathe may partner with local not-for-profit organizations to acquire affordable

homes that have been abandoned or foreclosed upon within the City limits of Olathe in Johnson County, Kansas.

These homes will be demolished and the land will be placed in a land bank until a not for profit organization or the
City of Olathe builds affordable housing on the land. Emphasis will be placed on homes located within the CDBG

area and/or our Original Town area.

Activity Description:

Olathe is proposing to utilize additional NSP funds to purchase up to four (4) abandoned or foreclosed upon homes
in Olathe that will be demolished and the land will be placed in a Land Bank until the City of Olathe or a local
organization decides to build affordable housing on the land. The City is encouraged to partner with local
not-for-profit organizations on this activity.

This activity will offer home ownership opportunities to an underserved segment of Olathe’s population once the
vacant land has an affordable home built on it by the City or local not for profit organizations.

Total Budget:

Purchase up to 5 homes $200,000.00

Demolition of Homes $122,888.44
Administrative Fee $ 16,994.13
Total NSP Funding Needed: $339,882.57

Performance Measures:

1) Purchase up to four abandoned or foreclosed homes.

2) Demolition of the abandoned or foreclosed homes.

3) Place vacant land in a Land Bank.

4) Within 10 years City of Olathe or Habitat for Humanities or like organization will build affordable housing on
the vacant land.

5) Houses will be built for families with incomes below 120% of the median income for the metropolitan area.
25% of the homes will be offered to families with incomes below 50% of the median income.
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CITY OF OLATHE LAND BANK
SUMMARY

1) What is a Land Bank?

A separate governmental entity which can be used to facilitate the
acquisition and disposition of real property
0 Property is exempt from ad valorem taxes while in the Bank
o0 Offers a streamlined purchase/sale process to quickly put
properties back on the tax rolls

2) What is Olathe’s authority to create a Land Bank?

K.S.A. 12-5901 et seq. (via H.B. 2155, adopted by the Legislature in
2009)

Previously, only Wyandotte County/Kansas City, KS could operate a
land bank after passage of special legislation in 1996

Several cities, including Overland Park and Topeka, have now
established Land Banks

Well-established in Atlanta, Louisville, Cleveland, and St. Louis

3) How is a Land Bank created and governed?

Established or dissolved by Ordinance

Governed by a Board of Trustees appointed by City’s governing body
(can be members of the governing body meeting specifically as the
Land Bank Board)

4) How does the Land Bank and Land Bank Board operate?

City can advance operating funds
Bank is subject to KORA and KOMA and conflict of interest laws
Must comply with statutory fiscal and budget requirements,
including Kansas Cash Basis law
Must manage Land Bank property and submit annual reports to the
governing body
0 Board may appoint officers, agents and employees required for
performance of its duties
May retain proceeds from sale of properties for purposes of the Bank
May establish and consult with neighborhood or advisory committees
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5) How does the Land Bank acquire properties?

- May acquire by purchase, gift or devise, and convey any real
property, including easements and reversionary interest, and
personal property; may rebate all or a portion of the taxes on any
property sold by the governing body

- Property owned by City or County may be transferred to Land Bank
without any bidding or public sale requirements

- Property acquired by Land Bank comes free and clear of delinquent
taxes, assessments, charges, penalties and interest

o0 Property remains liable for special assessments unless waived
by levying municipality, but no payments required until
property is conveyed by the Bank

6) How must the Land Bank manage property?
- Property is exempt from ad valorem taxes in the Bank
- Bank must determine potential, present and future uses for
effective reutilization of property
- Property may be temporarily used for public purposes
- Bank must maintain records and accounts reflecting all expenditures
and revenues

7) How may the Land Bank dispose of property?

- Board determines when and to whom to sell property

- No competitive bidding requirement

- Notice published 30 days prior to sale

- Can impose terms, conditions, restrictions and covenants necessary
to assure effective reutilization of property

- Board may rebate all, or a portion, of ad valorem taxes but not
specials

8) What are the benefits of establishing a Land Bank?
- Prevent negative impact caused by vacant & tax-delinquent property
- Acquire and hold property for future development and or
redevelopment
- Partner with community groups, not-for-profit entities, and
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developer to effectively reutilize property

Enhance the tax base in older areas of town

Improve the image and quality of life of the community

Satisfy the goal of returning tax delinquent property to productive
use which benefits the community
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ORDINANCE NO. 10-19

AN ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 2.86 TO THE OLATHE MUNICIPAL CODE
ESTABLISHING THE CITY OF OLATHE LAND BANK.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF OLATHE,

KANSAS:

SECTION ONE: Chapter 2.86 is hereby added to the Olathe Municipal Code and
shall read as follows:

“Chapter 2.86
LAND BANK

Sections:

2.86.010 Definitions

2.86.020 Authority and Governance

2.86.030 Governing Law

2.86.040 Appointment of Officers and Conduct of Meetings
2.86.050 Powers of the Board

2.86.060 Transfer of Property to the Land Bank

2.86.070 Administration of Land Bank Property

2.86.080 Disposition of Land Bank Property

2.86.090 Taxes and Assessments

2.86.100 Use of Proceeds from the Sale of Land Bank Property
2.86.110 Neighborhood Advisory Committee

2.86.010 Definitions. As used in this Chapter:

A. “City” means the City of Olathe.

B. “Board” means the Board of Trustees of the City of Olathe Land
Bank.

C. “Bank” means the City of Olathe Land Bank established pursuant
to this Chapter.

D. “Governing Body” means the Governing Body of the City.

E. “Municipality” means any city, county or other political or taxing

subdivision which has the power to levy special assessments.

2.86.020 Authority and Governance.
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A. The Governing Body of the City hereby establishes the City of
Olathe Land Bank.

B. The Bank shall be governed by a Board of Trustees. The
Governing Body shall serve as the Board of Trustees. Vacancies on the Board
shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term.

C. The Governing Body shall advance operating funds to the Bank to
pay expenses of the Board and the Bank.

D. The Bank may be dissolved by ordinance of the Governing Body. In
such case, all property of the Bank shall be transferred to and held by the City and
may be disposed of as otherwise provided by law.

2.86.030 Governing Law.

A. The Bank shall be subject to the provisions of the Kansas
cash-basis law, K.S.A. 10-1101 et seq., and amendments thereto.

B. The budget of the Bank shall be prepared, adopted and published
as provided by law for other political subdivisions of the state. No budget shall be
adopted by the Board until it has been submitted to, reviewed and approved by the
Governing Body.

C. The Board shall keep accurate accounts of all receipts and
disbursements. The receipts and disbursements of the Board shall be audited
yearly by a certified or licensed public accountant and the report of the audit shall
be included in and become part of the annual report of the Board.

D. All records and accounts shall be subject to public inspection
pursuant to K.S.A. 45-216 et seq., and amendments thereto.

E. Any moneys of the Bank which are not immediately required for the
purposes of the Bank shall be invested in the manner provided by K.S.A. 12-1675,
and amendments thereto.

F. The Bank shall make an annual report to the Governing Body on or
before January 31 of each year, showing receipts and disbursements from all
funds under its control and showing all property transactions occurring in each
year. Such report shall include an inventory of all property held by the Bank. A
copy of such inventory also shall be published in the official City newspaper on or
before January 31 of each year.

G. The Bank shall be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 9-1401 et
seq., and amendments thereto.

2.86.040 Appointment of Officers and Conduct of Meetings.
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A. The Board shall select annually, from its membership, a
chairperson, a vice-chairperson and a treasurer. The treasurer shall be bonded in
such amounts as the Governing Body may require.

B. The Board may appoint such officers, agents and employees as it
may require for the performance of its duties, and shall determine the
gualifications and duties and fix the compensation of such officers, agents and
employees.

C. The Board shall fix the time and place at which its meetings shall
be held. Meetings shall be held within the City and shall be subject to the
provisions of K.S.A. 75-4317 et seq., and amendments thereto.

D. A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business. No action of the Board shall be binding unless taken at a
meeting at which at least a quorum is present.

E. The members of the Board shall be subject to the provisions of the
laws of the state of Kansas which relate to conflicts of interest, including, but not
limited to, K.S.A. 75-4301 et seq., and amendments thereto.

F. Subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-6101 et seq., and
amendments thereto, if any action at law or equity, or other legal proceeding, shall
be brought against any member of the Board for any act or omission arising out of
the performance of duties as a member of the Board, such member shall be
indemnified in whole and held harmless by the Board for any judgment or decree
entered against such member and, further, shall be defended at the cost and
expense of the Bank in any such proceeding.

2.86.050 Powers of the Board. The Board may:

A. Sue and be sued;
B. Enter into contracts;
C. Authorize the City Manager to appoint and remove staff and

provide for the compensation thereof;

D. Acquire, by purchase, gift or devise, and convey any real property,
including easements and reversionary interests, and personal property subject to
the provisions of this Chapter;

E. Rebate all, or any portion thereof, the taxes on any property sold or
conveyed by the Bank;

F. Exercise any other power which may be delegated to the Land
Bank by the Governing Body; and



ATTACHMENT C

G. Exercise any other incidental power which is necessary to carry
out the purposes of the Land Bank and this Chapter.

2.86.060 Transfer of Property to the Land Bank.

A. Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, any property
acquired by the City, the county, another city or other taxing subdivision within the
county may be transferred to the Bank. The Board may accept or refuse to
accept any property authorized to be transferred pursuant to this subsection. The
transfer of any property pursuant to this subsection shall not be subject to any
bidding requirement and shall be exempt from any provision of law requiring a
public sale.

B. The fee simple title to any real estate which is sold to the county in
accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 79-2803 and 79-2804, and amendments
thereto, and upon acceptance by the Board of Trustees may be transferred to the
Bank by a good and sufficient deed by the County Clerk upon a written order from
the Board of County Commissioners.

C. Property subject to a foreclosure sale may only be acquired by the
Board if:

1. Such property is located within the City’'s Community
Development Block Grant-eligible area and Neighborhood Revitalization
Area, and

2. But for acquisition of the property by the Board (at the sole
discretion of the Board), the property would not otherwise be put to
productive use.

2.86.070 Administration of Land Bank Property. The Board shall assume
possession and control of any property acquired by it under this Chapter and shall
hold and administer such property. In the administration of property, the Board
shall:

A. Manage, maintain and protect or temporarily use for a public
purpose such property in the manner the Board deems appropriate;

B. Compile and maintain a written inventory of all such property. The
inventory shall be available for public inspection and distribution at all times;

C. Study, analyze and evaluate potential, present and future uses for
such property which would provide for the effective reutilization of such property;

D. Plan for and use the Board’s best efforts to consummate the sale
or other disposition of such property at such times and upon such terms and
conditions deemed appropriate;
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E. Establish and maintain records and accounts reflecting all
transactions, expenditures and revenues relating to the Bank’s activities, including
separate itemizations of all transactions, expenditures and revenues concerning
each individual parcel of property acquired; and

F. Thirty days (30) prior to the sale of any property owned by the
Bank, publish a notice in the official City newspaper announcing such sale.

2.86.080 Disposition of Land Bank Property.

A. The Board, without competitive bidding, may sell any property
acquired by the Board at such times, to such persons, and upon such terms and
conditions, and subject to such restrictions and covenants deemed necessary or
appropriate to assure the property’s effective reutilization. The sale of any real
property by the Board under the provisions of this Chapter on which there are
delinquent special assessments to finance public improvements levied by the
Governing Body shall be conditioned upon the approval of the Governing Body.

B. The Board, for purposes of land disposition, may consolidate,
assemble or subdivide individual parcels of property acquired by the Bank.

2.86.090 Taxes and Assessments.

A. Until sold or otherwise disposed of by the Bank and except for
special assessments levied by the Governing Body to finance public
improvements, any property acquired by the Bank shall be exempt from the
payment of ad valorem taxes levied by the state and any other political or taxing
subdivision of the state.

B. Except for special assessments levied by the Governing Body to
finance public improvements, when the Board acquires property pursuant to this
Chapter, the County Treasurer shall remove from the tax rolls all taxes,
assessments, charges, penalties and interest that are due and payable on the
property at the time of acquisition by the Board.

C. Property held by the Bank shall remain liable for special
assessments levied by a municipality to finance public improvements, but no
payment thereof shall be required until such property is sold or otherwise
conveyed by the Bank.

D. The Governing Body may abate part or all of the special
assessments it has levied, and the Bank and Governing Body may enter into
agreements related thereto. Any special assessments that are abated shall be
removed from the tax rolls by the County Treasurer as of the effective date of the
abatement.

2.86.100 Use of Proceeds from the Sale of Land Bank Property.
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A. Except as provided in paragraph (b), any moneys derived from the
sale of property by the Bank shall be retained by the Bank for the purposes and
operations thereof.

B. The Board may use all or any part of the proceeds from the sale
described in paragraph (a) to reimburse the City bond and interest fund for
delinquent special assessments due on such property.

2.86.110 Neighborhood Advisory Committees. The Board may establish
separate neighborhood or City advisory committees consisting of persons living
or owning property within the City or neighborhood. In the case of neighborhood
advisory committees, the Board shall determine the boundaries of each

neighborhood. In the absence of a resolution by the Board providing otherwise,
each advisory committee shall consist of not less than five (5) nor more than nine

(9) persons, to be appointed by the Board for two-year overlapping terms. The
Board shall consult with each advisory committee as needed to review the
operations and activities of the Bank and to receive the advice of the members of
the advisory committee concerning any matter which comes before the

committees.”

SECTION TWO: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication as provided by law.

PASSED by the Governing Body this 23rd day of March, 2010.

SIGNED by the Mayor this 23rd day of March, 2010.

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk

(SEAL)
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APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney

Publish one time and return one Proof of Publication to the City Clerk and one to the City
Attorney.



CHAPTER 120
HOUSE BILL Ne. 2155°

AN Act concerning land banks; relating to the establishment of land hanks by cities.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:

Section 1. As used in this act:

(a) “City” means any city.

() “Board” means the board of trustees of the city land bank.

(¢} “Bank” means the city land bank established pursuant to this act.

(d} *“Governing body” means the governing body of the city.

(e} “Municipality” means any cily, county or other political or taxing
subdivision which has the power to levy special assessments.

Sec. 2. (a) The governing body may establish a city land bank hy
adoption of an ordinance.

(b) The bank shalt be governed by a hoard of trustees. The governing
body may appoint the board. City governing body members may serve
on or as the board of trustees. Vacancies on the board shall be filled by
appointment for the umexpired term.

(¢) The governing body may advance operating funds to the bank to
pay expenses of the board of trustees and the bank. Members of the board
of trustees shall receive no compensation, but shall be paid their actual
and necessary expenses in attending meetings and in carrying out their
duties as members of the board.

(d) The bank may be dissolved by ordinance of the governing body.
In such case, alt property of the bank shall be transferred to and held by
the city and may be disposed of as otherwise provided by [aw,

Sec. 3. (a) The bank shall be subject to the provisious of the cash-
hasis law, K.5.A. 10-1101 et seq., and amendments thereto.

(b} The budget of the bank shall be prepared, adopted and published
as provided by law for other political subdivisions of the state. No budget
shall be adopted by the board until it has been submitted to, reviewed
and approved by the governing body,

(¢) The board shall keep accurate accounts of all receipts and dis-
bursements, The receipts and dishursements of the board shall be audited
yearly by a certified or licensed public accountant and the report of the
audit shall be included in and become part of the anmual report of the
board.

(d) Al records and accounts shall be subject to public inspection pur-
suant to K.8.A. 45-216 et seq., and amendments thereto.

{e) Any moneys of the bank which are not immediately required for
the purposes of the bank shall be invested in the manner provided by
K.S.A. 12-1675, and amendments thereto.

{f) The bank shall make an annual report to the governing body on
or before January 31 of each year, showing receipts and disbursements
from all funds under its control and showing all property transactions
occurring in each year, Such report shall include an inventory of all prop-
erty held by the bank. A copy of such inventory also shall be published
in the official city newspaper on or before January 31 of each year.

{g) The bank shall be subject to the provisions of K.5.A. 9-1401 et
seqy., and amendments thereto,

Sec. 4. (a) The board shall select annually, from its membership, a
chairperson, a vice-chairperson and a treasurer. The treasurer shall be
bonded in such amounts as the governing body may require.

{h) The board may appoint such officers, agents and employees as it
may require for the performance of its duties, and shall determine the
qualifications and duties and fix the compensation of such officers, agents
and employees.

{¢) The board shall fix the time and place at which its meetings shall
be held. Meetings shall be held within the city and shall be subject to the
provision of K.S.A. 75-4317 et seq., and amendments thereto.

(d) A majority of the board shall constitute a quorum for the trans-
action of business. No action of the board shall be binding unless taken
at a meeting at which at least a quorum is present.

(e} The members of the board shall be subjeet to the provisions of
the laws of the state of Kansas which relate to conflicts of interest of
county officers and employess, including, but not limited to, K.S.A, 75-
4301 et seq., and amendments thereta,
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{f) Subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-6101 et seq., and amend-
ments thereto, if any action at law or equity, or other legal proceeding,
shall be brought against any member of the board for any act or omission
arising out of the performance of duties as a member of the board, such
member shall be indemnified in whole and held harmless by the board
for any judgment or decree entered against such member and, further,
shall be defended at the cost and expense of the bank in any such pro-
ceeding.

Sec. 5. The board may:

(a) Sue and be sued,

(b) enter into contracts;

(¢c) appoint and remove staff and provide for the compensation
thereof,

(d) acquire, by purchase, gitt or devise, and convey any real property,
including easements and reversionary interests, and personal property
subject to the provisions of this act;

(e} rebate all, or any portion thereof, the taxes on any property sold
ar conveyed by the bank;

(f) exercise any other power which may be delegated to the fand bank
by the governing body: and

(g) exercise any other incidental power which is necessary to carry
out the purposes of the land bank and this act.

Sec. 6. {a) Any property acquired by the city, the county, another city
or other taxing subdivision within the county may be transferred to the
bank. The beard may accept or refuse to accept any property authorized
to be transferred pursuant to this subsection. The transfer of any property
pursuant to this subsection shall not be subject to any bidding require-
ment and shall be exempt from any provision of law requiring a public
sale,

(b) The fee simple title to any real estate which is sold to the county
in accordance with the provisions of K.8.A. 79-2803 and 79-2804, and
amendments thereto, and upon acceptance by the hoard of trustees may
be transferred to the bank by a good and sulficient deed by the county
clerk upon a written order from the board of county commissioners.

Sec. 7. The board shall assume possession and control of any prop-
erty acquired by it under this act and shall hold and administer such
property. In the administration of property, the board shalk:

(a) Manage, maintain and protect or temporarily use for a public pur-
pose such property in the manner the board deems appropriate;

{b) compile and maintain a written inventory of all such property.
The inventory shall be available for public inspection and distribution at
all times;

{¢) study, analyze and evaluate potential, present and future uses for
such property which would provide for the effective reutilization of such
property;

(d} plan for and use the board’s best efforts to consummate the sale
or other disposition of such property at such times and upon such terms
and conditions deemed appropriate;

{e) establish and maintain records and accounts reflecting all trans-
actions, expenditares and revenues relating to the bank’s activities, in-
cluding separate itemizations of alt transactions, expenditures and reve-
nues concerning each individual parcel of property acquired; and

(fy thirty days prior to the sale of any property owned by the bank,
publish a notice in the official city newspaper announcing such sale.

Sec. 8. (a) The board, without competitive bidding, may sell any
property acquired by the board at such times, to such persons, and upon
such terms and conditions, and subject to such restrictions and covenants
deemed necessary or appropn'ate to assure the property’s effective reu-
tilization. The sale of any real property by the hoard under the provisions
of this act on which there are delinquent special assessments to finance
public improvements shall be conditioned upon the approval of the gov-
erning body of the municipality which levied the special assessments.

(b) The board, for purposes of land disposition, may consolidate, as-
semble or subdivide individual parcels of property acquired by the bank.

Sec, 9. {a) Until sold or otherwise disposed of by the bank and except
for special assessments levied by a municipality to finance public improve-
ments, any property acquired by the bank shall he exempt from the pay-
ment of ad valorem taxes levied by the state and any other political or
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taxing subdivision of the state,

(b)  Except for special assessments levied by a municipality to finance
public improvements, when the board acquires property pursuant to this
act, the county treasurer shall remove from the tax rolls all taxes, assess-
ments, charges, penalties and interest that are due and payable on the
property at the time of acquisition by the board.

(¢) Property hield by the bank shall remain liable for special assess-
ments levied by a municipality to finance public improvements, but no
payment thereof shall be required until such property is sold or otherwise
conveyed hy the bank,

(d) The governing body of any municipality which has levied special
assessntents on property acquired hy the bank may abate part or all of
the special assessments, and the bank and governing body may enter into
agreements related thereto. Any special assessments that are abated shall
be removed from the tax rolls by the county treasurer as of the effective
date of the abatement.

Sec. 10. (a) Except as provided in paragraph (b}, any moneys derived
from the sale of property by the bunk shall be retained by the bank for
the purposes and operations thereof,

{(h) The board may use all or any part of the proceeds from the sale
described in paragraph (a) to reimburse any municipality for delinquent
special assessments due on such property.

Sec. 11, ‘The board may establish separate neighborhood or city ad-
visory commitiees consisting of persons living or owning property within
the county, city or neighborhood. In the case of neighborhood advisory
committees, the board shall determine the houndaries of each neighbor-
hood. In the absence of a resolution by the board providing otherwise,
each advisory committee shall consist of not less than five nor more than
nine persons, to be appointed by the board for two-year overlapping
terms. The board shall consult with each advisory committee as needed
to review the operations and activities of the hank and to receive the
advice of the members of the advisory committee concerning any matter
which comes before the committees.

Sec. 12. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its
publication in the statute book.

Approved April 23, 2009.
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